Agenda
For enquiries on this agenda, please contact:
Jean Cousens tel 020 8547 5023
email: jean.cousens@kingston.gov.uk
Published on Wednesday 24 January 2018

Adults and Children's Committee
Date:

Thursday 1 February 2018

Time:

7:30 pm

Place:

Guildhall, Kingston upon Thames
Members of the Committee
Councillor Richard Hudson (Co Chair), Councillor Cathy Roberts (Co Chair),

Councillor Sushila Abraham, Councillor Patricia Bamford, Councillor Linsey Cottington,
Councillor David Fraser, Councillor Ian George, Councillor Eric Humphrey, Councillor
Rebekah Moll, Councillor Maria Netley, Councillor Terry Paton, Councillor Margaret
Thompson and Councillor Diane White
Co-opted member:
 representing the Anglican Diocese of Southwark: Jane Marwood
Advisory members:
 for health - Dr Naz Jivani and Dr Pete Smith

Everyone is welcome to attend the meeting
This agenda is available to view on: www.kingston.gov.uk
You can also access this agenda through the Modern.gov app or by scanning the QR
code with your smartphone. Free Wifi is available in the Council Chamber (which can be
accessed with the user name: rbk public and the password: freewifi)

2

3

Agenda
1.
Public Questions
A period of up to 30 minutes for public questions on matters relevant to the Committee’s
remit which are not related to items featuring on the agenda. Advance notice of questions
is preferred but not essential.
2.

Apologies for absence

3.

Declarations of interest

4.

Petitions

5.
Minutes
To agree as a correct record the Minutes of the last meeting held on 21 September 2017.
6.
Kingston Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2016/17
Appendix A
To formally receive the Kingston Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report for 2016/17.
7.
'Thrive London': Motion from Council (12 December 2017)
Appendix B
To consider the Motion which the Council at its meeting on 12 December 2017 referred to
this Committee and to the Health and Wellbeing Board and to forward to the Board the
Committee’s comments on the Motion.
8.

Elected Members and Safeguarding Children and Vulnerable
Appendix C
Adults
To propose that all elected Members be subject to a basic DBS check and confirm the
arrangements for Member training in children and adult safeguarding.

9.

Adults and Children's Social Care Complaints Statutory Annual Appendix D
Report
To inform the Committee of the performance and outcomes of statutory complaints for
adult and children’s social care in 2016/17.

10.
Budget Report 2018-19 to 2021-22
Appendix E
To set out the proposed budget for 2018/19 to 2021/22 and the detailed information
required to enable this Committee to make recommendations to inform the Treasury
Committee’s recommendations to Budget Council on 27 February 2018.
11.
HRA Budget for 2018/19
Appendix F
The Committee will consider any comments from the Housing Sub-Committee on 23
January 2018 on the HRA budget proposals and make the necessary decisions to set rent
levels for 2018-19.

4

12.

Schools Budget – Update on Budget Process 2018-19

Appendix G
Report To
Follow

13.
Murray House
Appendix H
To ask Members to agree that the Council proceed with a resident, family, partner
organisations and public consultation for the closure of Murray House.
14.

Determination of Admission Arrangements for 2019/20 for all
Appendix I
Community Schools and for Coordinated Admissions Scheme
To fulfil the statutory duty of the Local Authority (LA) to determine admission
arrangements for community schools. This includes the statutory duty to adopt coordinated admission schemes for primary and secondary admissions for all schools within
the borough.

15.

Appointment of registered providers representative on the Housing SubCommittee
At its meeting on 21 June 2016 the Committee appointed advisory members onto the
Housing Sub-Committee, including a representative for registered providers. Most
recently that advisory member role has been held by Robin Oliver of RHP (Richmond
Housing Partnership housing association).

Robin has recently left RHP and RHP have nominated Tim Willcocks RHP Development
Director to replace Robin on the Sub-Committee, subject to the Committee’s approval.
The appointment would also be subject to concurrence of the Registered Providers Forum
(which does not meet until after 6 September 2018).
The Committee is recommended to appoint Tim Willcocks to the role of registered
providers (non-voting) advisory member on the Housing Sub-Committee, subject to the
concurrence of the Registered Providers Forum.
16.

Urgent Items authorised by the Chair

To consider any items which, in the view of the Chair, should be dealt with as a matter of
urgency because of special circumstances in accordance with S100B(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972.
17.
Exclusion of the Public and Press
The following resolution is included if any exempt matter is to be considered at the meeting
for which the Committee wish to resolve to exclude the press and public:
To exclude the public from the meeting under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government
Act 1972 on the grounds that it is likely that exempt information, as defined in paragraph
*….of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act, would be disclosed and the public interest in
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.
(*relevant regulatory paragraph to be indicated)

5

Welcome to this meeting.
The following information explains the way some things are done at the meeting and some of the
procedures.
Information about the Committee
The Committee is made up of your local elected Councillors. As one of five strategic committees
of the Council, it helps to set the overall direction of the Council. The Adults and Children’s
Committee makes decisions about: adult social care, public health; environmental health;
equalities; housing; and children’s safeguarding, looked after children, Achieving for Children
commissioning; education and skills, schools, school places, approval of the Schools Budget
estimates and Schools Funding Formula, pupil referral units; youth service; special educational
needs; and children’s centre).
Public participation during the meeting
Do you want to ask a question?
There is a Question Time of up to 30 minutes from 7.30pm – 8pm. Questions may be
submitted in writing before the meeting or handed in at the start of the meeting on the green
forms provided. (There are some green slips on the chairs and there are more copies.)
Please fill in the relevant part and hand this in to the Committee Officer at the top table.
Where a full reply cannot be given at the meeting, a written reply will be sent to the
questioner, members of the Committee and the local press. The Chair may disallow any
question which, in his/her opinion, is scurrilous, capricious, irrelevant or otherwise
objectionable.
Running order
Are you here for a particular item? Items may be taken in a different order depending on the
interests of the members of the public present at the meeting. Please fill out a green form at
the start of the meeting and hand this to the Committee Officer if you would like to request
that a particular item is heard earlier in the meeting.
Taking part in the meeting
During the course of the meeting, the Chair, at his/her discretion, may allow contributions, on
items listed on the agenda. To attract the Chair’s attention, please raise your hand.
Speaking at meetings
Speaking at a meeting can be a daunting prospect and every effort is made to make this as
easy as possible. Speech-friendly arrangements will take account of people who may have a
speech impairment, e.g. they may have a stammer. If you have any individual requirements
or feel that standing or addressing the meeting may present a difficulty, please let us know
beforehand. Arrangements will be made to help you as far as reasonably possible.

6

More meeting information
Accessibility






All meetings have access for people who may have mobility difficulties. If there are stairs, a
lift or stairlift is available. Disabled parking spaces are available on site.
Toilet facilities will be easily accessible from the meeting room.
For people who are deaf or have hearing impairments, there is an induction loop (depending
on the building, this may only be available in the first 2 or 3 rows).

A large print copy of the agenda can be requested in advance.

Emergency evacuation arrangements
If the fire alarm sounds, please leave the building by the nearest exit. If you require assistance,
please remain seated and an Officer will assist you from the building.
Webcasting of the meeting
This meeting will be webcast live on https://kingston.public-i.tv/core/portal/home and a recording
will also be available to watch back a few hours afterwards. Recordings are accessible for a
period of 12 months. Members of the public sitting in the public seating area will not generally be
in direct camera shot but we cannot always guarantee this, so please note that, by attending the
meeting, you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound
recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes.
Filming
Residents and journalists/media wishing to film meetings are permitted to do so but are asked to
give advance notice of this and respect any concerns expressed by people on being filmed.
Interests
Councillors must say if they have an interest in any of the items on the agenda. Interests may be
personal or pecuniary. Depending on the interests declared, it might be necessary for the
Councillor to leave the meeting. The detail on interests is in Part 5A of the Constitution Members’ Code of Conduct.
Call In
Most of the decisions made at the Committee, except on decisions on planning applications/
planning enforcement/tree preservation orders and any licensing applications, can be called in for
review by 100 people who live, work or study in the Borough. The call in period is 10 days after
the meeting (the deadline for the call in of decisions will be set out on each report). Decisions are
not, therefore, acted upon until it is clear that they are not going to be called in.
The call in means the decision will be reviewed by a full meeting of the Council. The Council at
this meeting cannot change the original decision, it may decide that no further action is necessary,
in which case the decision will be implemented or will refer the issue back to the Committee with
its views and a request that the decision is reconsidered taking account of these views.
Minutes
The minutes briefly summarise the item and record the decision. They do not record who said
what during the debate.

A1
Adults and Children’s Committee - 1 February 2018

Appendix A

Health and Wellbeing Board - 15 March 20178

Kingston Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report
Report by the Director, Adult Services
Call-in deadline (ten working days after the meeting): For A&C Cttee: 5pm Thursday 15 February 2018
Purpose
To formally receive the Kingston Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report for 2016/17
Recommendation of the Portfolio Holder for Adults Social Care and Health
To Resolve that the Annual Report of the Kingston Safeguarding Adults Board for 2016/17
is received and any comments of the Committee are reported back to the Chair of the
Board.
Key Points
A.

The Kingston Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report for 2016/17 outlines the
progress made during the year in safeguarding adults at risk and is produced by the
Chair in consultation with key stakeholder partners on the safeguarding Adults
Board.

B.

The Annual Report covers the period 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017. Each year the
Board has been able to consider and report on the development of work carried out
by the Council and its partners to safeguard vulnerable adults with care and support
needs from abuse.

C.

There is a requirement for the Annual Report to be presented to the Health &
Wellbeing Board each year and it was thought appropriate to also present the report
to the Adults and Children’s Committee.

D.

The Committee is asked to receive the annual report of the Kingston Safeguarding
Adults Board for 2016/17 and note the progress made.

E.

The Annual Report includes feedback from partner agencies:
1.
Kingston Clinical Commissioning Group
2.
Metropolitan Police
3.
Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
4.
Your Healthcare
5.
South West London & St. George’s Mental Health NHS Trust
6.
London Ambulance Service
7.
London Fire Brigade

F.

The introduction of the Care Act in 2015 brought the introduction of significant
changes in terminology and safeguardings requirements; for the purposes of this
report, we are comparing ‘Concerns and Enquiries’ in 2016/17 with ‘alerts’ and
‘referrals’ in previous years. A safeguarding concern occurs when any safeguarding
issue is first raised with Adult Social Care. After a Concern is received it is
reviewed, considered and risk assessed. It will either be dealt with through another
route, if not considered to be a safeguarding matter, or it will advance for a fuller
investigation and formal intervention. This is called a Section 42 Enquiry.

A2
In 2016/17, there were a total of 893 safeguarding Concerns raised, leading to 369
Enquiries. This is an increase compared to the same period the previous year. 41%
of Concerns progressed to Enquiry in 2016/17 compared to 61% in 2015/16. The
increase in concerns is seen as positive as it means that our partners and the
community are aware of Adult Safeguarding and are aware how to report it.

G.

H.

The Annual Report also provides information and data on Deprivation of Liberty
Safeguards (DoLS), for the implementation of which the Safeguarding Adults Board
is responsible. This continues to be an unfunded additional statutory requirement.
It relates to adults who lack capacity to consent to treatment or care in either a
hospital or care home that, in their own best interests, can only be provided in
circumstances that amount to a deprivation of liberty. These safeguards came into
force on the 1 April 2009, for the purpose of providing a legal framework for acting
and making decisions on behalf of these individuals. These are people who are 18
years and above with significant Learning Disabilities, Dementia, Autism, Brain or
Neurological injury/conditions.

I.

In the period 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 there were 781 DoLS requests
received, compared to 729 for the same period the previous year. This represents
a 7% increase in the number of referrals. 90% of referrals are received from
care/nursing homes with 10% coming from hospitals. For the residents residing in
the borough in hospital or care homes 642 requests were received (84%) compared
with 128 requests (16%) for Kingston residents residing outside of the borough.

J.

During the reporting year, 277 Standard requests, 186 Urgent requests and 318
Renewal requests were received. The 318 Renewal requests received were for
repeat referrals.

Background papers: held by Julie Phillips, Head of Access, Safeguarding & DoLS
tel 0208 547 6730 email: julie.phillips@kingston.gov.uk
o

None

other than those referred to in this report

Co-Author of Report - Sian Walker, Independent Chair of the Kingston Safeguarding
Adults Board and Julie Phillips, Head of Access, Safeguarding & DoLS tel 0208 547 6730

A3

A4

A5

A6

A7

A8

A9

A10

A11

A12

A13

A14

A15

A16

A17

A18

A19

A20

A21

A22

A23

A24

A25

A26

A27

A28

A29

A30

A31

A32

A33

A34

A35

A36

A37

A38

A39

A40

A41

A42

A43

A44

A45

A46

A47

A48

A49

A50

B1
Adults and Children’s Committee - 1 February 2018
Health and Wellbeing Board - 15 March 2018

Appendix B

‘Thrive London’ (Motion from Council on 12 December 2017)
Report of the Director of Public Health
Call in deadline: Thursday 15 February 2018 5pm (10 working days after the meeting)
Purpose
To consider the Motion which the Council at its meeting on 12 December 2017 referred to this
Committee and to the Health and Wellbeing Board and to forward to the Board the
Committee’s comments on the Motion.
Recommendations of the Portfolio Holder for Adults Social Care and Health
To Resolve that 1.

the Motion set out in (A) below is agreed: and

2.

any comments from this Committee about this Motion are referred to the Health and
Wellbeing Board to consider at its meeting on 15 March.

Key Points
A.

At the Council meeting on 12 December 2017, the following Motion was proposed by
Councillor Chris Hayes and seconded by Councillor Kevin Davis and was referred
(without discussion) to be considered both by this Committee and by the Health and
Wellbeing Board:
‘This Council acknowledges that:
1.

two million Londoners experience poor mental health, which equates to 62,500
people in each borough,

2.

London’s suicide rate increased by 33% from 552 to 735 incidents between
2014 and 2015 – the highest figure recorded by the Office for National Statistics
since records began.

‘This Council understands that:
1.

employment for Londoners with a mental health problem is 31 percent lower
than the UK average and that the financial cost of mental ill-health is
approximately £700 million for each London borough.

‘This Council reaffirms:
1.

its commitment to approach mental health and wellbeing as a key priority and
to work collaboratively with partners within and outside the borough to
address and tackle mental ill-health across our communities. Especially
working closely with our own Sustainability and Transformation Partnership
through a Thrive Kingston.

‘This Council commits to support and work with Thrive LDN to:
1.

create a citywide movement for all Londoners that empowers individuals and
communities in our borough to lead change, address inequalities that lead to
poor mental health and create their own ways to improve mental health.

B2
examine new methods to support more people in Kingston to access a range
of activities that help them to maintain good mental health and wellbeing.
work closely with partners across Kingston to end mental health stigma and
discrimination.

2.

B.

3.

build on the great work happening across London to engage children and
young people in promoting positive mental health by helping Thrive LDN to
develop training and resources for youth organisations, schools and student
societies.

4.

support employers to make mental health and wellbeing central to the
workplace.

5.

work with partners to explore new ways to access services and support, and
consider the use of digital technologies to promote mental health and
improve information about accessing support.

6.

work with partners and build on the excellent work being done across the
borough to reduce suicides in Kingston.’

'This

motion offers the opportunity to build on the raft of work already happening
locally (see Context), by adopting new initiatives led by Thrive London and working
closely with our partners across the capital to improve mental health and wellbeing.'
or something along those lines.

Context
1.

The Mental Health and Wellbeing Annual Public Health Report in 2014 covered
the mental health of Kingston residents in detail and included a number of
recommendations to improve the mental health of Kingston residents. Since then
the Council and its partners have initiated a number of initiatives and strategies to
implement these recommendations.

2.

Central to this is ‘Thrive Kingston’ which was presented to the Health and
Wellbeing Board in March 2017 and which is our mental health strategy. It sets
out the start of a five year journey to enhance the mental wellbeing of the whole
Kingston community, to shift our efforts to prevention, preventative services and
early intervention, and to transform the experience and care of people with mental
health problems, their families, friends and carers. It covers prevention and
wellbeing in all age groups and is focused on mental health services for adults
(and is aligned with children’s mental health service plans).

3.

The five themes of ‘Thrive Kingston’ are: 1) Wellbeing and Prevention 2) Early
Intervention 3) Community Connection 4) Access to Services and 5) Joined up
Care. Their sub-themes are described in the table overleaf.

4.

The priorities for 2017-2018 are shown in bold in the table overleaf. They are:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Early years, children and family, schools - prevention
Workplace mental health
Directory of services
Develop primary care
Peer support networks
Triaging and Single point of access (and care co-ordination when required)
Roadmap of services and establishment of Mental Health and Wellbeing Hub

B3
Table 1: Thrive Kingston – mental health and wellbeing strategy

Shifting to prevention and early intervention, promoting a full life in the community, and
ensuring access to high quality, joined up services when needed
Designed, delivered and monitored using co-production
Themes
Wellbeing
and
Prevention

Early
Intervention

Community
Connection

Access to
Services/Support

Joined Up Care

Mental
wellbeing

Building
capacity for
self-care

Ongoing
recovery

Triaging and Single
point of access (and
care co-ordination
when required)

Integration across
community, primary and
acute care (KCC aligned)**

Mental health
friendly
community

Mental Health
First Aid

Peer support
networks

Address gaps in
mental health
services for ASD,
ADHD, LD, drugs
and alcohol
problems

Roadmap of services and
establishment of Mental
Health and Wellbeing
Hub

Early years,
children and
family,
schools
-prevention$

Directory of
services

Housing and
mental health

Remove inequality
in access

A strong partnership with
the community**

Targeted
public health
campaigns

Mental Health
Navigators

Employment
and mental
health

Expand recovery
college

Review of inclusion and
exclusion criteria

Workplace
mental health

Develop
primary care

Finance and
debt

Psychological
therapies – high
quality, sufficient
capacity, tailored

Communications

Reducing
stigma

Immediate
Crisis
Response

Parenthood
and mental
health$

Ensure consistent
24/7 mental health
and day provision
for adults including
crisis care
concordat

Commission for physical
and mental health needs

Suicide
prevention *

Increased
capacity for
early
intervention

Physical
health and
mental health
needs

Access to social
care support

Transition between
children, adult and old
age services$

Tackling
isolation**

Carers**

Inclusion

Out of area
placements

B4
Golden Threads
Recognise, celebrate and share good practice, System Leadership, Governance and
Co-production
Integrated data-sharing,
Consistent quality,
Workforce training, Shared monitoring, standards and KPIs and consistent prioritisation,
Good financial management, incentives, levers
Key to table:
Bold items are priorities for 2017-2018
* Suicide Prevention Strategy
$
Supportive Communities
 shared with CAMHS transformation plan

** shared with KCC, Active &

5.

As Thrive Kingston was completed before Thrive London was launched, it states
that “Kingston will take account of the work of Thrive London as it emerges, and
work proactively to introduce new initiatives and pilots collaboratively.” In fact, a
number of the priorities of Thrive Kingston align very closely with Thrive London,
for example:

6.

Kingston is already working to empower individuals and communities in our
borough to lead change, address inequalities that lead to poor mental health and
create their own ways to improve mental health. ‘Thrive Kingston’ was
co-produced by over 200 people from the Kingston community, those with mental
health problems and those without, their friends, carers and parents, as well as
health, social care and public health professionals, commissioners, and a wide
representation from the voluntary sector and other local organisations including
the police. ‘Thrive Kingston’ includes a commitment to explore the role of Mental
Health and Wellbeing Champions from within the community in order to develop
Mental Health friendly communities.

7.

Kingston already has in place some activities that help people to maintain good
mental health and wellbeing including a training course called Practical Ideas for
Happier Living course. ‘Thrive Kingston’ includes a commitment to promote the
Five Ways to Wellbeing and to continue to develop community resilience. Kingston
already works closely with partners across Kingston to end mental health stigma
and discrimination through, among other things, the Mental Health First Aid
Programme. 60 frontline staff attended adult mental health first aid training in 2016
and 73 in 2017. Thrive Kingston includes a commitment to extend mental health
first aid to the public, and to continue to offer it to police, health and social care
staff, and to schools and workplaces.

8.

Kingston has run student mental health conferences for the last four years in order
to engage young people in promoting positive mental health. More recently there
are plans to work with Kingston and Richmond Youth Council’s and Kingston
Health Watch to further engage young people in promoting positive mental health.

9.

Kingston Public Health has encouraged over 15 local employers to sign up for the
London Healthy Workplace Charter and has used this to encourage employers to
address mental health issues at work. Thrive Kingston includes a commitment to:
● support Kingston employers to make mental health and wellbeing central to
the workplace
● improve employment opportunities by working with Jobcentre Plus to ensure
their staff understand the particular needs of people with mental health
problems and those with Autistic Spectrum Disorder

B5
● review the network of employment support to make sure there is a clear
connection between Job Centre Plus and other employment support such as
Balance CIC support, and the service offered by adult education
organisations in Kingston.
● continue to commission employment support provided by Balance CIC and
make new investments using NHS England monies Improve the links
between employment support and psychological therapies services for
example by embedding employment workers within the psychological
therapies service.
● understand how the Work for Health programme can support people with
mental health problems.
● ensure individuals’ employment needs and aspirations are written into their
care plans
● support local employers to increase their awareness and capacity to employ
people with mental health problems and tackle stigma surrounding mental
health in employment.

10.

We are in discussion with Thrive London to explore new ways to access services
and support, and consider the use of digital technologies to promote mental health
and improve information about accessing support. Kingston’s CAMHS
transformation plan includes a commitment to work with young people to identify
and introduce a range of digital and online resources. More detail on the progress
on Thrive Kingston can be found in Appendix 2 of the report on the Suicide
Prevention Strategy and Adult Mental Health Strategy for Kingston in the agenda
for the Health Overview Panel on 7 December 2017.

11.

We are continuing to implement Kingston’s Suicide Prevention Strategy which was
presented to the Adult’s and Children’s committee in March 2016. Detailed
progress on the action plan for this strategy was provided to the Health Overview
Panel on 7 December 2017 in Appendix 4 of the report: Suicide Prevention
Strategy and Adult Mental Health Strategy for Kingston – a review of
implementation.

Londonwide and national context
12.

The Five Year Forward View for Mental Health (2016) was produced to complement
the Five Year Forward View for the NHS (2014) and describes priorities for change
over the next five years. It was accepted in full by the Government and an
implementation plan was published in summer 2016. Priorities include:
●
●

Supporting employment – recognising employment as a crucial health
outcome and supporting people with mental health problems to find and stay in
work
Workforce – good management of mental health in the workplace and the
provision of occupational mental health experience and effective workplace
interventions.

13.

The Prevention Concordat for Better Mental Health programme of work was
launched in August 2017. It is one of the recommendations in the ‘Five Year
Forward View for Mental Health’, published in 2016. This programme aims to
facilitate local and national action around preventing mental health problems and
promoting good mental health.

14.

A set of resources has been created to help local areas to put in place effective
prevention planning arrangements. They are aimed at health and wellbeing boards,
local authorities, clinical commissioning groups and their partners. A Consensus

B6
statement has been signed by representatives from various public health, mental
health, user NHS and local authority organisations including the Local Government
Association:

(i)

To transform the health system, we must increase the focus on prevention and
the wider determinants of mental health. We recognise the need for a shift
towards prevention-focussed leadership and action throughout the mental
health system; and into the wider system. In turn, this will impact positively on
the NHS and social care system by enabling early help through the use of
upstream interventions.

(ii)

There must be joint cross-sectoral action to deliver an increased focus on the
prevention of mental health problems and the promotion of good mental health
at local level. This should draw on the expertise of people with lived
experience of mental health problems, and the wider community, to identify
solutions and promote equality.

(iii)

We will promote a prevention-focused approach towards improving the public’s
mental health, as all our organisations have a role to play.

(iv) We will work collaboratively across organisational boundaries and disciplines
to secure place-based improvements that are tailored to local needs and
assets, in turn increasing sustainability and the effective use of limited
resources.
(v)

We will build the capacity and capability across our workforce to prevent
mental health problems and promote good mental health, as outlined in the
Public Mental Health Leadership and Workforce Development Framework Call
to Action1.

(vi) We believe local areas will benefit from adopting the Prevention Concordat for
Better Mental Health.
(vii) We are committed to supporting local authorities, policy makers, NHS clinical
commissioning groups and other commissioners, service providers, employers
and the voluntary and community sector to adopt this Concordat and its
approach.
15.

Transforming Children and Young People’s Mental Health Provision: a Green
Paper sets out the Government’s ambition to ensure that children and young
people showing early signs of distress are always able to access the right help, in
the right setting, when they need it. This approach has three key elements:
(i)

Incentivising every school and college to identify a Designated Senior Lead
for Mental Health to oversee the approach to mental health and wellbeing.
All children and young people’s mental health services should identify a link
for schools and colleges. This link will provide rapid advice, consultation
and signposting.

(ii)

New Mental Health Support Teams, supervised by NHS children and young
people’s mental health staff, to provide specific extra capacity for early
intervention and ongoing help. Their work will be managed jointly by
schools, colleges and the NHS. These teams will be linked to groups of
primary and secondary schools and to colleges, providing interventions to
support those with mild to moderate needs and supporting the promotion of
good mental health and wellbeing.

(iii)

B7
Trialling a four week waiting time for access to specialist NHS children and
young people’s mental health services.

Proposal and Options
16.

The Committee is recommended to agree the Motion set out in (A) above and to
refer any comments about the Motion from this meeting to the Health and
Wellbeing Board which will consider this report at its meeting on 15 March 2018.

Consultations
17.

The Thrive Kingston Strategy was produced in consultation and co-production with
over 200 people from the Kingston community

Timescale
18.

Appendix 4 of the report to the Health Overview Panel includes an Action Plan
related to the Suicide Prevention Strategy with timescales.

19.

Any comments from this Committee will be reported to the Health and Wellbeing
Board to consider at its meeting on 15 March 2018.

Resource Implications
20.

There are no resource implications arising from the specific recommendation of
this report. The proposals can be accommodated within existing budgets.

Legal Implications
21.

There are no legal implications arising from the specific recommendation of this
report.

Risk Assessment and Equalities Impact Assessment
22.

There are no risk assessment or equality impact assessment implications arising
from the specific recommendation of this report. The principles of the equality duty
to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunities and foster good
relations will be underpinned in supporting Thrive London and have informed
Thrive Kingston.

Environmental, Air Quality Implications and Road Network Implications
23.

There are no Environmental, Air Quality or Road Network implications arising
from the specific recommendation of this report.

Background papers - held by Liz Trayhorn and Helen Raison, Public Health tel: 020 8547
6801/2/3/4: liz.trayhorn@kingston.gov.uk
● ‘Thrive Kingston A Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategy for the people of Kingston
by the people of Kingston 2017 to 2021’

● ‘Preventing Suicide in Kingston: A multi-agency strategy 2016-2021.’ 28 November
2017
Author of report – Liz Trayhorn, Mental Health Lead, RBK

Adults and Children’s Committee

C1

Appendix C

1 February 2018
Elected Members and Safeguarding Children and Vulnerable Adults
Joint Report by LSCB Professional Adviser and the Head of Safeguarding Adult Social Care
Call-in deadline: 5pm on Thursday 15 February 2018
Purpose
To propose that all elected Members be subject to a basic DBS check, confirm the arrangements
for Member training in children and adult safeguarding and approve a protocol for site visits where
Members may come into contact with children or vulnerable adults.
Recommendations of the Portfolio Holder for Children’s Social Care and Health and
the Portfolio Holder for Adults Social Care and Health
To Resolve that 1.

the draft policy in relation to DBS checks for Members as set out in Annex 1 to the report
be approved for application from the beginning of the 2018/19 Municipal Year;

2.

the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee be asked to consider whether the policy
should be reflected appropriately in the Members’ Code of Conduct;

3.

a report on the operation of the scheme be presented to the Committee after 12 months
of operation;

4.

safeguarding children and safeguarding adults at risk’ training continues to form part of
the Councillors’ induction programme and the approach to Member training set out in
paragraphs 27-30 of the report be agreed; and

5.

the Head of Corporate Governance be authorised to prepare a safeguarding protocol in
respect of Member site visits modelled on the provisions contained within the Local
Safeguarding Children’s Board Guidance in consultation with the Co-Chairs of this
Committee.
Key Points
A.

This report, which is produced in collaboration with the Kingston Safeguarding Adults
Board (KSAB), outlines options for the Committee to consider in relation to Disclosure
and Barring Service (DBS) checks for elected Members. The Disclosure and Barring
Service undertakes checks which help employers make safer recruitment decisions and
prevent unsuitable people from working with vulnerable groups, including children. It
replaced the Criminal Records Bureau (CRB) and Independent Safeguarding Authority
(ISA).

B.

It is also proposed that the Council adopts a protocol in relation to site visits for
Councillors during which they may come into contact with vulnerable adults or children.

C.

The report also encourages a continued commitment to safeguarding adult and children
induction training for all Councillors.

Context
1.

The Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) is a non-departmental public body sponsored
by the Home Office. The DBS has access to criminal records, is responsible for
investigating safeguarding concerns and maintains lists of those barred from working
with children and adults in England and Wales. It provides a procedure through which

C2
organisations may carry out criminal record checks relating to individuals who may, on
behalf of the organisation, undertake work or hold positions or responsibilities which
might bring them into contact with vulnerable persons.

2.

Whether through contact with constituents at ward level or in the course of their work as
a Portfolio Holder, Chair or member of a relevant Committee, elected Members may,
from time to time, have access to vulnerable adults and children and/or confidential
personal information relating to them. While the Council’s current practice is to ensure
that Members who are appointed to positions where they are likely to interact regularly
with children, young people or adults at risk, undergo a DBS check it does not at the
present time have a formal written policy on the matter. The Committee is therefore now
asked whether such a policy should be introduced in the light of high levels of societal
concern about child sexual exploitation and advice issued as a result of both local and
national inquiries. It is essential both for the Council’s reputation and the wellbeing of its
residents to ensure that all proper safeguards are in place around children and
vulnerable adults.

3.

The Casey Report in 2015 highlighted a wide variety of serious failings at Rotherham
Metropolitan Borough Council in respect of child sexual exploitation. Most relevant to
this paper are the failures of governance, in particular around appropriate checks on
Members. The report notes that ‘very few Councillors had been checked in the role of
“councillor” or “elected member”…there has been no historic, systematic checking of
members who had access to vulnerable children’.

4.

One of the concerns raised in the Casey Report was that many elected Members had
not had Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) checks in their role as Members, even
though they were eligible for the checks because their position gave them access to
children or vulnerable adults, or information on these groups.

5.

Locally, the inquiry into the former Leader of this Council, Derek Osbourne, which was
led by Peter Oldham QC submitted its findings to the Treasury Committee in June 2017.
Amongst other things it recommended that DBS checks should be sought for Members
engaged in education and social services functions and Members acting as governors
of maintained schools. (Checks on School Governors are not addressed within this
report because no Members are currently serving as the Council representative on
Maintained School Boards of Governors and even if they were to do so each school is in
any event required to undertake an Enhanced DBS check on all Governors).

The DBS System
6.

The Protection of Freedoms Act 2012 made changes to the regime of vetting and
barring individuals from working with children and vulnerable adults. The Act reduced
the number of positions and circumstances in which persons would need to be the
subject of a criminal records check. The provisions now only relate to those persons
who have close and unsupervised contact with vulnerable groups including children.
The DBS system now offers the following levels of check:

7.

Basic Disclosure. This is the lowest level of Disclosure and can be undertaken by
anyone for any purpose regardless of the extent of their contact with young people
and vulnerable adults. It simply contains details of convictions considered unspent
under the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 or states that there are no such
convictions. This form of check, unlike those in the following paragraphs, can only be
undertaken by the individual in question and not an organisation such as an employer
(or in this case the Council). Basic Disclosure checks may be appropriate for roles

C3
that might have access to sensitive data such as health, education or social services
records relating to children or vulnerable adults.

8.

Satisfactory receipt of a basic disclosure check may provide some assurance that a
Councillor is not disqualified from holding office; however, it cannot provide 100%
assurance. For example, it would in theory be possible for a Councillor to have a
relevant conviction that becomes spent during the five year period prior to their election
which would technically disqualify them but would not show on a basic disclosure check.

9.

Standard Check. This goes further than the basic check as it also covers records of
spent convictions, police cautions and reprimands. In order to be eligible for a
Standard check the role must be listed in the (Exceptions) Order of 1975. This
creates exceptions to the provisions of the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act in relation
to the disclosure and use of ‘spent’ convictions. It is a list of professions and work
roles which may be regarded as having an expectation of trust in relation to the public
at large. The list does not include the role of Elected Members.

10.

Enhanced Check without barred lists. This also provides access to additional
information held by the police, such as complaints or third party referrals, which may
be treated as relevant to the role in question. This information is useful to determine
whether there are concerns under investigation locally which have not resulted in any
formal action and any information provided may also help put details of any offence in
context.

11.

In order to be eligible for an Enhanced Check without Barred Lists to be undertaken, the
role covered must be included in both the (Exception) Order 1975 and in the Police Act
1997 (Criminal Records) Regulations 2002. It is unlawful to request an Enhanced Check
with Barred List if the role does not meet the criteria. Eligible activities include teaching,
training, supervising, advising, treating/transporting or caring for children or vulnerable
adults.

12.

While this definition would not automatically include all members of a local authority
simply by virtue of their status as Councillors it does potentially cover Members who
discharge education and social services functions. In Kingston’s case those Member
roles which are most likely to meet the criteria are the Portfolio Holders with
responsibility for Education and Social Services and the members of the Adoption,
Fostering and Corporate Parenting Panels. Each of these Members will be have access
to a range of personal information on vulnerable children and adults and, in the case of
the Panel members, be directly responsible for decisions on the care of those
individuals. Membership of the Strategic Committee(s) responsible for the relevant
functions is not, in itself, likely to satisfy the criteria because the decisions with which
they would be involved would be on a policy level rather than that of the individual.

13.

Enhanced Checks Including Barred List. This is the highest level of check and it
reveals the same as an Enhanced check without Barred Lists plus whether the
applicant is on either the DBS maintained list of people barred from working with
children or its equivalent in respect of vulnerable adults.

14.

To be eligible to request a check of the barred lists for children or adults, the role must
meet certain criteria for regulated activity based largely around the type of close
personal support to children and vulnerable adults typically provided in a health and
social care environment or the day to day management and supervision of such roles. It
is highly unlikely that an elected Member would find themselves undertaking such
functions in the course of their civic duties and this level of check is therefore not
applicable.

15.

C4
The various DBS checks can be summarised as follows:

Information
Provided

Member Eligibility

Application By

Basic

Unspent convictions

All Members

Individual

Standard

As above plus spent
convictions, Police
cautions and
reprimands

Members
Council
discharging certain
education and social
services functions
only

Enhanced without
Barred List

As above plus
additional
information held by
Police which may
not relate to formal
action

Members
Council
discharging certain
education and social
services functions
only

Enhanced with
Barred List

As above plus
whether applicant is
on DBS maintained
lists of people
barred from working
with children or
vulnerable adults

None

Council

Considerations
16.

The DBS process should not be approached lightly. It is intended to offer safeguards in
relation to individuals who come into contact with young or vulnerable people as part of
their ‘usual’ role. It is expected that such contact will be ‘regular’ rather than occasional
and that it would be unsupervised. In the absence of these elements it would not be
expected that the DBS processes be exploited simply to provide a measure of
assurance where none is needed. Indeed, the Council would be in breach of the
Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 if it was to to request details of convictions and
cautions that it is not legally entitled to know about.

17.

The statutory accountability of Members as ‘Corporate Parent’ in relation to children
who are or have been Looked After or who may be at risk of harm within the community
does not equate to Members holding or being expected to discharge day to day
operational activities in relation to children – by seeing them or visiting establishments
as of right. Such contact would usually be organised and supervised and may be
considered to be an occasional rather than a regular activity for elected members.

18.

The main role of Members (to set the policy direction for the Council’s activities and
service arrangements, to hold service leads to account for outcomes agreed by
Members and to champion the interests of those who may rely upon the safeguarding
and care systems of the Council) would not meet the criteria for any form of DBS check
other than the Basic Disclosure available to all.

19.

There are, nevertheless, certain aspects of the Member role which may cross into the
field of activity which might be considered relevant. These include the ability to visit
establishments where children, young people or older people are present to receive
services for which the Council is responsible and the discharge of Education or Social

C5
Services functions. From time to time Members also see vulnerable adults and children
in their ward surgeries and may have cause to visit them in their homes to discuss a
Council related issue.

Proposals
20.

The proposed draft policy set out at Annex 1 therefore takes account of the statutory
limitations on the type of checks that can be undertaken in respect to the Member role
and attempts to strike a balance between the need for proportionality and the
requirement that the Council fulfills its duties to safeguard young people and vulnerable
adults.

21.

Whilst it is accepted that a DBS check may give a false assurance as it is a reflection of
data held by the police at a point in time rather than a confirmation that a person does
not present a risk, the draft policy recognises that the public may expect all Councillors
to be in a position of trust in relation to vulnerable people for whom they are ultimately
accountable. It therefore recommends that every Member be subject to a Basic
Disclosure check as a minimum. It also proposes that Enhanced Without Barred Lists
checks be undertaken on those Members undertaking certain defined roles in respect of
Education and Social Services functions who, whether as Portfolio Holders or Panel
Members, might be expected to have a greater level of frequency of contact with groups
of service users or establishments used for services for vulnerable people. The draft
policy satisfies the recommendations of the Osbourne Inquiry referred to in paragraph 5
above.

22.

The draft policy recommends the renewal of checks after election, and every
subsequent re-election, to Office, effectively ensuring that they are undertaken every
four years.

23.

It also seeks to put in place processes for the handling of positive disclosures. In the
absence of an enforceable contractual relationship between the Council and elected
Members of the type between the Council and Officers there will be a great deal of
reliance on the engagement of Members in the process if it is to operate effectively. It
will be the individual Member who must apply for a Basic Disclosure Check (though the
Council will be able to do so for Enhanced Checks) and in both cases flags raised will
be reported initially to the Member who is the subject of the search rather than the
Council.

24.

It is recommended that the Audit Governance and Standards Committee be asked to
consider whether failures to comply with aspects of the policy - for example not
co-operating with the undertaking of a check at the level appropriate to their role or and
not disclosing the nature of issues flagged - should potentially constitute a breach of the
Member Code of Conduct.

25.

The operation of the scheme will be kept under review and a report on the effectiveness
of the arrangements presented to Committee after it has been in place for twelve
months.

26.

The Council’s alternative courses of action are, in practical terms, limited. It could
decide not to undertake criminal records checks on any Member but this would fail to
satisfy the recommendations of the Osbourne Inquiry and would not meet likely public
expectation around the safeguards in place. It would expose the Council to significant
risk if it could not demonstrate that it had taken all reasonable steps to protect the
interests of its vulnerable residents and service users. At the other end of the spectrum
the regulations governing the DBS process prevent more rigorous checking of
Members’ records because of the relatively limited nature of their direct contact with
young people and vulnerable adults. DBS checks can only be sought to the extent
permitted by law.

27.

C6
It should be noted that the law relating to elections already provides some safeguard by
barring individuals from standing for election if they have been convicted of a criminal
offence within the last 5 years and received in excess of 3 months’ imprisonment. In
addition a Government consultation has recently closed on proposals to strengthen the
rules that prevent people found guilty of serious crimes from serving on Councils. If
implemented this could mean that, for example, anyone given an Anti Social Behaviour
Injunction, a Criminal Behaviour Order or added to the sex offenders’ register, would no
longer be able to hold elected office.

Member Training
28.

It is important that, as a means of discharging their full duties and powers, local
Councillors are aware of their scrutiny and accountability roles, and have a full
understanding through their induction and training, of the local and national
safeguarding adults and children’s priorities and needs.

29.

The Council runs an induction training course for new Members, which includes an
introduction to safeguarding adults and children for all Members as Corporate Parents.
This is repeated every four years following the regular cycle of Borough elections. In
addition, specific Member training sessions have been provided, for example:
●
●

training provided by Kingston Safer Partnership on the Child Sexual Exploitation
Policy in 2014-15
training provided to the Licensing Committee by the LSCB in May 2016.

30.

In addition to the above approach, it is proposed that Members serving on the Corporate
Parenting Board, the Adoption and Permanency Panel and the Fostering Panel and the
Kingston Safeguarding Adults Board should have specific inductions to their portfolio
posts. This would be provided by LSCB and SAPB officers who will also also provide
more specific support for those Members with relevant portfolio positions or who are
involved with the Licensing Committee.

31.

In the London Borough of Enfield, for their Councillor Induction programme, the Council
provides a ‘mandatory’ monthly member development programme, which includes
safeguarding issues, as well as conduct advice. In Kingston, there has not been strong
Member support for making Member training mandatory, and it would be difficult to
impose sanctions for non participation in this regard. However, other approaches can
be used to improve Member attendance, such as providing training before meetings
which Members will be attending anyway, and such methods will therefore be used for
this key area of Member training.

Site Visit Protocol
32.

It is proposed that a protocol be developed to provide guidance to Members on
safeguarding issues which may arise in respect of site visits (which would include visits
to residents homes). Existing Local Safeguarding Children’s Board Guidance can be
modified for the purpose and it is recommended that the Head of Corporate Governance
be authorised to devise an appropriate protocol in consultation with the Co Chairs.

Consultations
33.

The report reflects discussions with members of the Local Safeguarding Children’s
Board (LSCB) and among officers in: children’s safeguarding, adults safeguarding, HR
and Corporate Governance.

Timescale

C7

34.

In the event of its approval by the Committee, the draft Criminal Records Check policy
will come into effect after the May 2018 Borough Elections.

35.

Induction training for councillors is provided every four years after each local
government election - the next such training will therefore be provided in May/ June
2018. This will include an intensive programme of introductory sessions during the first
month or so and then regular Member training sessions thereafter.

Resource Implications
36.

The total cost of an Enhanced DBS check is currently £56 per person which will be
met from within existing departmental budgets.

37.

The cost of Basic Disclosures is £37 each. As the application process for this must
be completed by individual Members and not the Council, this cost will have to be
met by Councillors in the first instance and the expense subsequently reclaimed
(also to be met from within existing departmental budgets).

Legal Implications
38.

It is a criminal offence for the Council to allow an individual to take part in regulated
activity without first checking whether they are on a barred list by way of an enhanced
DBS check.

39.

The proposed policy complies with the exception to the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act
1974 and with the Disclosure Barring Service Code of Practice.

40.

As set out in the proposed policy, in accordance with Section 124 of the Police Act
1997, disclosure information will only be passed to those people who are authorised to
receive it in the course of their duties.

41.

The Monitoring Officer will maintain a record of the date a check was requested, the
type of check requested, the name of the subject and position for which the disclosure
was requested, the unique reference number, the date a response was received and a
list of all those to whom the disclosure information has been revealed, as well as a note
of any action taken as a result of the disclosure. It is a criminal offence to pass this
information to anyone who is not entitled to receive it. Disclosure information will only
be used for the specific purpose for which it is requested and for which the applicant’s
full consent has been given.

Risk Assessment
42.

The proposals in this report respond to the recommendations of the South West London
Audit Partnership Independent Review and Investigation Report of Peter Oldham QC
(appended to the report to the June 2017 Treasury Committee), which included a focus
on how Councillors who engage in matters with regard to schools, youth and
safeguarding might be better scrutinised without affecting their ability to perform their
duties.

43.

To implement DBS checks for councillors would help to address any risks associated with
members discharging their roles – specific or general – in relation to vulnerable persons,
especially those within the Council’s care. The Council has a duty to protect vulnerable
people to whom it owes a statutory duty of care - DBS checks could provide a first level
of assurance that an individual in a position of trust does not present a direct risk of harm
to such individuals. This also addresses the reputational risk that the Council may be

C8
perceived as failing to protect vulnerable persons if it does not adopt a system of DBS
checks for Members.

44.

The counter risk is that DBS checks may give a false sense of assurance and confidence
as to the risks posed by any particular person - and so other measures and safeguards
(such as supervision or requiring approval before Members make direct contact with
vulnerable people) would complement this policy.

Equalities Impact Assessment
45.

A full assessment is not required. The proposed policy would strengthen the Council’s
public sector equality duty.

Environmental and Air Quality Implications/Road Network Implications
46.

There are no environmental or road network implications

Background papers - held by authors of the report: Elisabeth Major, Local Children’s
Safeguarding Board Professional Adviser elisabeth.major@achievingforchildren.org.uk
(tel 0208 547 6537) and Julie Phillips, Head of Safeguarding, DOLS & Access, Adults
Social care (tel 0208 547 6730) julie.phillips@kingston.gov.uk
●
●
●

Report to 29 June 2017 Treasury Committee
Gov.UK DBS Eligibility Guidance tool
LSCB Safeguarding Policy (‘The Green Book’)

C9

Annex 1

Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Criminal Records Checks for Elected Members - Policy Statement
February 2018 (effective from May 2018)
Introduction.
1. The Council requires criminal records checks to be undertaken with the Disclosure
and Barring Service (DBS) to establish whether an elected Member has any
criminal convictions, and, in respect of those undertaking certain defined roles, any
cautions, reprimands, warnings or other relevant information in relation to which the
Council should be taking appropriate steps in line with its safeguarding
responsibilities.
Criminal records checks for Members
2. All elected Members are required to apply for a Basic criminal record check and to
notify the Council of the results within a period of two months after election to the
Council (and each subsequent re-election). The Council is unable to make such
applications on behalf of individual Members.
3. The Council will undertake Enhanced without Barred List criminal record checks in
respect of the holders of the following posts:
● Portfolio Holders with specific responsibilities for Childrens and Adults Social
Care Services.
● Members of the Adoption and Permanency Panel, Fostering Panel and the
Corporate Parenting Panel.
4. Enhanced without Barred List checks will be undertaken by the Shared HR Service
at the request of the Monitoring Officer when a Member is appointed to the relevant
posts and panels identified above unless one has already been conducted by the
Council in the period since the last whole Borough elections.
5. Where a Member has had a prior period of residence overseas, the Council may,
where appropriate, seek a criminal records check from the relevant country or
countries as the domestic Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) process does not
access criminal records held overseas.
6. The Council will not accept DBS disclosure certificates from other organisations for
any Member.
Disclosure Outcomes
7. The relevant Member will be provided with a certificate issued by the DBS after
each Basic and Enhanced check.
8. In the case of Basic Checks undertaken by the individual Member the Member must
notify the Monitoring Officer of the disclosure of clear checks within 28 days of the
date of issue of the certificate.
9. Where a Member is in receipt of a positive disclosure notice (one which contains
content about cautions, convictions, reprimands, warnings or information held
locally by police forces relating to the Member) in respect of either Basic or
Enhanced Checks, the Member must provide a copy of the disclosure certificate to
the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of the date of issue of the certificate, unless
the content of the certificate is disputed and the dispute is raised with the DBS
within 3 months of the date of issue, in which case the certificate must be provided
to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days following the outcome of the dispute. The

C10
Monitoring Officer shall also notify the Chief Executive and, where there is a
safeguarding concern, the relevant Safeguarding Lead at the earliest opportunity.

10. In the case of a positive disclosure notice the Monitoring Officer and the Chief
Executive (and where relevant the Safeguarding Lead) in consultation with the
Director(s) with functional responsibility for Children’s and Adult Social Care, the
relevant Group Leader and, if considered appropriate, the Leader of the Council,
shall determine the most appropriate course of action to safeguard children, young
people and vulnerable adults. In so doing they shall have regard for the context and
seriousness of the offence or incident disclosed, the passage of time since the
offence or incident, the relevance to the Member engaging with vulnerable groups,
staff, members and customers and whether the Member’s circumstances have
changed since the offence or incident.
11. The Monitoring Officer and Chief Executive shall also determine who should be
notified of the disclosure. In so doing information will only be shared on a ‘need to
know’ and lawful basis. The presumption will be in favour of not notifying or
consulting others unless there is a clear, justifiable and agreed rationale for doing
so.
12. The Monitoring Officer will maintain a written record of all relevant conversations to
ensure that the outcome and actions are properly recorded and there is clarity of
responsibility for any actions or further notification.
13. Subject to compliance with electoral law in respect of eligibility to hold office, the
Council cannot prevent the election or continuation in office of any Member
irrespective of what might be disclosed by a criminal records check. Where a
conviction, caution or other issue is disclosed the Council may, however, take
proportionate steps to deal with the matter.
Non Compliance
14. A refusal by a Member to co-operate with a criminal records check or to share with
the Council the information revealed by the check will be referred to the Chief
Executive, Monitoring Officer and Safeguarding Leads owing to the lack of
assurance as to the Member’s previous conduct. The Chief Executive and
Monitoring Officer may choose to put into effect the same procedures set out in Part
3 above concerning positive disclosures.
The Control of Disclosure Information
15. The Monitoring Officer will maintain a record of the date a check was requested, the
type of check requested, the name of the subject and position for which the disclosure
was requested, the unique reference number, the date a response was received and a
list of all those to whom the disclosure information has been revealed, as well as a
note of any action taken as a result of the disclosure. It is a criminal offence to pass
this information to anyone who is not entitled to receive it. Disclosure information will
only be used for the specific purpose for which it is requested and for which the
applicant’s full consent has been given.
16. The Council complies fully with the Disclosure & Barring Service Code of Practice
regarding the correct handling, use, storage, retention and disposal of disclosures
and disclosure information (policy on security of disclosures and disclosure
information). The Council also complies fully with its obligations under the Data
Protection Act and other relevant legislation pertaining to the safe handling, use,
storage, retention and disposal of disclosure information.

Adults and Children’s Committee

D1

Appendix D

1 February 2018
Annual Social Care Complaints Report
Report by the Head of Corporate Governance
Call-in deadline Thursday 15 January 2018 (ten working days after the meeting)
Purpose
To inform the Committee of the performance and outcomes of statutory complaints for
adult and children’s social care in 2016/17.
Recommendation of the Portfolio Holders for Adults Social Care and Health and
for Children’s Social Care and Health
To resolve that the Annual Social Care Complaints report at Annex 1 is formally received
and any comments of the Committee are noted.
Key Points
A.

Complaints regarding services provided by adult and children’s social care are
subject to statutory complaint procedures initiated by The National Health Service &
Community Care Act 1990 and the Children Act 1989. As part of the Regulations,
an annual report has to be presented to the relevant local authority committee in
order to be kept informed of the operation of this statutory complaints procedure
and this report covers the period 1 April 2016 - 31 March 2017. This is attached as
Annex 1 to the report. This report has been produced within the statutory timescale.

B.

Adult and Children’s social care are subject to regulatory bodies. These are the
Care Quality Commission (CQC) for adult services and for children’s services, the
Office for Standards in Education, Children’s Services and Skills (Ofsted). The CQC
no longer requires local authority adult social care services to submit an annual
report concerning complaints but it currently remains within Ofsted guidance.
However, the production of annual complaints report is a helpful tool enabling the
monitoring of performance and providing an essential overview to complaints
concerning social care in Kingston. Complaints relating to Kingston’s children’s
social care continue to be managed and monitored by the Complaints and
Information Access Officer (CIAO) based in Corporate Governance.

C.

During the year a total of 72 complaints were received - 42 concerning adult social
care and 30 complaints concerning children’s social care . There were 9 referrals
concerning adult social care to the Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) which is
a reduction of of 2 from the previous year. However, this year all the referrals were
in relation to Adult Social Care with no complaints progressing to the LGO from
Children’s Social Care.

D

The number of complaints concerning Adult Social Care Services is higher than we
have seen in recent years with 42 recorded complaints received compared with 28
in 2015/16 and 32 in 2014/15. This represents 2.26% of the number of individuals
receiving some level of support from the service which was 1,854.

E.

The number of complaints concerning Children’s Social Care received for 2016/17
was 30, which shows a decrease of 11 complaints from the previous year
(2015/16). The number of complaints represents 2.6% of the total number of
referrals (1147) this year. 2016/17 has seen 4 complaints in Children’s Social Care
progress to Stage 2 of the procedure (ie the formal investigation stage).

G.

H

D2
There continues to be a determination on the part of those responsible for
responding to complaints to ensure that a full and comprehensive response is sent
at the initial stage and this is likely to be part of the reason for the comparatively low
number of requests for formal investigations. There have been no Stage 3 Review
Panels this year.

In order to provide a balanced picture, this report also includes information about
compliments received and these are set out in paragraphs 53 and 76 of the report.

Background papers - held by the author of the report, Karen Fenwick, Complaints and
Information Access Officer, Corporate Governance tel: 020 8547 4716
karen.fenwick@kingston.gov.uk

D3

Annex 1

STATUTORY SOCIAL CARE COMPLAINTS ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17
Introduction
1.

Complaints made regarding services provided by adult and children’s social
care are subject to statutory complaint procedures initiated by The National
Health Service & Community Care Act 1990 and the Children Act 1989.

2.

As part of the Regulations, an annual report has to be presented to the
relevant local authority committee in order to be kept informed of the
operation of the complaints procedure.

3.

Adult and children’s social care are subject to regulatory bodies.  These are
the Care Quality Commission (CQC) for adult services and for children’s
services, the Office for Standards in Education, Children’s Services and
Skills, (Ofsted).  The CQC no longer requires local authorities to submit an
annual report but it currently remains part of Ofsted guidance, (2016/17).
Ofsted is due to review this in 2017/18.
This report however, does contain information on both adult and children’s social
care complaints.  In order to provide a balanced picture, this report also includes
information about compliments received. 

Advocacy and Support
4.

Consideration must be given to the type of support service users may require
while their complaint is being processed.  This applies to both adult and
children’s services.

5.

Some complainants may require advice and support from an independent
advocate to make their complaint, to pursue it and to understand the process
and the outcome.  In addition, provision must be made for people whose first
language is not English and for people with communication requirements.

Equality Monitoring
6.

It is important to collect data in order to try and capture an accurate picture of
current service use by race, age, gender, disability, religion and belief and
sexual orientation for the following reasons:
●
●
●
●

●

to highlight where take-up or use of services could be improved or
reviewed
to provide a base-line for planning, target-setting and measuring
change in service use
to ensure that services are equally accessible to all sections of the
community who may be in need of them
to highlight whether any distinct need exist amongst members of
minority groups in relation to a particular service, for which alternative
provision may be necessary
to ensure that existing policies and procedures are not inadvertently
discriminating against any particular group

D4
Equality Monitoring: Adult Social Care

7.

The majority of complaints received were from females (36) with 6
complainants being male.  Of these, 2 complainants described themselves
as having a physical disability.

8.

Most complaints received were from people describing themselves as
White/British (39) and 1 complainant identified themselves as being from an
Asian background and 2 complainants recorded as Any Other White.

9.

Most complaints were made on behalf of a service user, either from a
relative, friend or carer.  However, 7 complaints were received from service
users directly which represents 16.6 % of complaints.

Equality Monitoring: Children’s Social Care
10.

As with Adult Services, the majority of complaints received were from
females (23) with 7 complainants being male.  Of these, 2 complainants
described themselves as having a mental health issue.

11.

Most complaints received were from people describing themselves as
White/British (20).  2 complaints was recorded from people describing
themselves as Other White Background.  One complainant was recorded as
Black African and 1 as Other Asian background.  The remaining complaints
were received from individuals whose ethnicity was either not known or
recorded.

Numbers of Statutory Complaints 2016/17
12.

In 2016/17 a total of 72 complaints have been received which is 1.83% of the
total number of service users/referrals.  This represents 42 complaints
concerning adult social care and 30 complaints for children’s social care.
Figure 1 Number of Complaints (2016/17) in comparison with previous 2 years

13.

D5
It is to be expected that numbers of complaints received in any particular
year will differ from the last.  This is acceptable as long as the rise or fall is
not excessive. Should one service area receive an unusual amount of
complaints, the nature of those complaints is evaluated in order to establish if
it is a core problem and appropriate action will then be taken.  If complaints
have reduced significantly, or the numbers are not as expected, then further
analysis is undertaken to try and establish any underlying cause. Please see
individual service area sections for further details.

The Local Government Ombudsman
14.

15.
16.
17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

If complaints have progressed through the local authority’s procedure, be it
adult or children’s social care, and the complainant remains dissatisfied, then
he or she has the option to refer their complaint to the Local Government
Ombudsman (LGO) for consideration.
The LGO produces a report of all boroughs, with details on the outcome of
referred complaints during that reporting year.
In 2016/17, nine cases concerning statutory social care complaints were
referred to the LGO all concerning Adult Social Care.

Of these cases referred to the Ombudsman in 2016/17, the LGO found some
fault in 7. The LGO records a complaint as upheld even if only one element
of the complaint is upheld.  Remedies ranged from a written apology to
financial compensation in some cases.  The LGO can also make
recommendations for improvement in practice.

There was one complaint, which was classed as premature by the LGO and
referred back to the Council to continue the investigation.  A further complaint
was closed by the LGO after making initial enquiries.
From 1 October 2010 the Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) was
granted extended powers, which enabled this office to deal with complaints
from people who self fund or arrange their own personal care.  The service
gives people who self fund the same access to the LGO as those who have
assistance from the Local Authority.
In the same way, people who receive a Direct Payment or Personal Budget
to arrange their own care, are now also able to approach the LGO if they
experience problems with the service they receive through a care agency
and have exhausted the route through the agencies own procedure.
However, if an individual employs a personal assistant (carer) directly they
should continue to seek assistance from the Local Authority via their care
manager or adult services team.  This is because the LGO currently has no
jurisdiction with regard to this type of support.

Procedural Arrangements - Adult Social Care
22.

All councils in England and Wales are required to provide a complaints
procedure for people who receive a service from Adult Social Care.  This
procedure has to follow the requirements of the Health and Social Care
(Community Health Standards) Act 2003 (a).  The regulations governing the
complaints process are the Local Authority Social Services and National
Health Services Complaints (England) Regulations 2009

23.

24.

25.

26.

D6
The Government introduced new guidance, ‘Listening, Responding,
Improving’, and Regulations concerning complaints handling for both health
and adult social care in April 2009. The aim of this approach to complaints
handling is to put things right quickly, to learn from the experience, improve
services and prevent future problems and that complainants will have more
confidence in the process.

The legislation requires local authorities to designate a Complaints Manager.
It is the Complaints Manager’s responsibility to manage the procedures for
handling and considering complaints under the Regulations.

The 2009 regulations removed the three stage process and dispensed with
the previous timescales for responding to complaints for adult social care.
However, there is a requirement to acknowledge the complaint within three
working days. In this procedure a variety of means can be used to resolve
complaints which will depend on the issues of the complaint and the outcome
of a risk assessment.
As a general rule complaints will be dealt with by category of risk (see the
following table):
Figure 3:

Category of Risk Table

Category Of Risk

Person Responsible

Possible Methods

Low to moderate

Relevant team manager or principal
manager, if the relevant team manager
is  implicated in the complaint

File inspection,
discussion with staff,
meeting with the complainant

Timescale – 10 working days with the possibility of an extension after consultation with the
complainant and the CIAO (Complaints & Information Access Officer).
High/ extreme

Investigation carried out by an officer
who is Independent from the service
that is being complained about or an
External Investigator.

Full investigation,
including file inspection,
interviews with staff,
review of policy and practice,
etc.

Timescale – 25 working days with the possibility of an extension after consultation with the
complainant and CIAO.

27.

28.

RBK will always seek to resolve the complaint as soon as possible, and in
the absence of a prescribed timescale, it uses an internal timescale of 10
working days, in consultation with the complainant.  This is general practice
throughout Local Authorities.

If a delay is anticipated, then the complainant is consulted.  All responses,
whether or not the timescale has been agreed with the complainant, should
be made within 6 months of receiving the complaint.  However, in exceptional
circumstances, if the investigation is likely to take longer, the complainant
must be notified in advance of the stated deadline and an alternative
timescale must then be agreed upon. In cases of a cross-organisational
complaint, the response must be coordinated so that the complainant
receives one consolidated response to their complaints.

29.

D7
The local authority has one opportunity to provide a formal response to the
complainant and this response must set out their right to approach the Local
Government Ombudsman should they remain dissatisfied. However,
complainants can refer to the Ombudsman at any time, although complaints
are usually referred back to the local authority if it has not been considered
under the relevant procedure in the first instance or if the process has not
been completed.

Adult Safeguarding
30.

Adults receiving community based or residential care services can be
vulnerable to abuse whilst receiving them, be that in care settings or in their
homes.

31.

It is vital that RBK and our partner organisations, including those we
commission, have clear, accessible complaints procedures and that these
are cross-referenced with ‘Safeguarding Adults’ procedures.

32.

Each complaint received by the Complaints and Information Access Officer
(CIAO) is screened and any relevant concerns are discussed with the
Safeguarding
Co-ordinator and if appropriate, referred to Adult Safeguarding for further
consideration and potential investigation.

33.

In 2016/17, 1 complaint was referred to Adult Safeguarding which is
consistent with the previous year.

34.

Where there are other issues of complaint to consider, the Adult
Safeguarding Team will re-route the concerns back to the CIAO for
consideration under the statutory complaints procedure once investigations
have concluded.  The complainant is in most cases notified of the action
being taken and kept informed of progress.

Complaint Statistics and Issues by Service Area
Adult Social Care
35.

Adult Social Care Services consists of teams who assess the needs of and
arrange services for people leaving hospital, older people, people with a
learning disability, people with a health issue or physical disability and people
with mental health and/or substance misuse issues.  The Service also
provides a range of domiciliary, residential, day and occupational therapy
services.

36.

Government guidelines indicate that wherever possible, complaints should
initially be dealt with by the service area involved and Adult Social Care
Services continues to meet this requirement.

37.

The revised guidelines do not actually specify timescales for dealing with
complaints.  There is provision within the guidelines to take as long as
required (within reason) in order to reach a satisfactory conclusion to a
complaint as long as this is with the agreement of the complainant(s).

D8
Figure 4: Outcome of Complaints by Service Area 2016/17, depicting Adult
Social Care provision of service in comparison with previous year (2015/2016)
Service Area

RBK Adult Social Care
Upheld

Not Upheld

Home Care Commissioning

0    {0}

Assessment Care Planning & M
 gmt

Total

3   {3}

Partially
Upheld
1   {1}

  4    {4}

1    {1}

7   {6}

4  (2}

 12  {9}

Residential Care/Supported Living

1   {1}

3    {2}

2  {2}

  6    {5}

Panel Decisions

0    {0}

2    {0}

1   {0}

  3    {0}

Communication

1   {0}

2   {0}

1    {0}

  4    {0}

Placements/Commissioning

0   {0}

2   {2}

1    {1}

  3    {3}

Safeguarding

0    {0}

2   {1}

1    {1}

  3    {2}

Occupational Therapy Services

0    {0}

2   {3}

1    {0}

  3   {3}

Learning Disability Services

1   {0}

2  {1}

1   {1}

  4  {2}

TOTAL

4    {2}

25  {18)

13  {8}

42  {28}

Note: Individual complaints can feature in more than one service area.  The table in Figure 4
may therefore indicate a greater number of complaints than shown in the overall statistics,
as shown in Figure 1.

38.

 The number of complaints has increased this year from 28 in 2015/16 to 42.
The  majority of complaints have been resolved without the need for a full
investigation although this year four complaints have been investigated
outside of the service area in question. This is an increase of three on the
previous year which, given the relatively low overall numbers of complaints,
is significant.

39.

Given the ongoing changes in legislative requirements, budgetary constraints
and delivery of services, the increase in complaints received is unsurprising.
Further analysis of these complaints reveal that the increase in largely due to
tightening of criteria and eligibility.

40.

The number of individuals receiving some level of support through Social
Care Services in 2016/17 was 1854 compared with 2017 in the previous
year.  This includes residential care, nursing care, direct payments,
homecare, mobile meals and all long term services apart from equipment.
The Reablement Service is also not included in these figures.  The number of
complaints received for Social Care Services therefore represents 2.26%.

41.

The Complaints and Information Access Officer (CIAO) continues to work
closely with both Adult and Children’s Social Care Services to monitor
complaints and identify any trends.  This will ensure that any recurring or
issues of a similar nature are flagged and addressed swiftly.

42.

43.

44.

D9
The CIAO has struggled his year to proactively raise awareness in the teams
of the complaints process and to ensure that all complaints made concerning
adult social care are reported appropriately.  This has been due to a
significant increased workload and vacancies within the overall Risk and
Assurance team.

As in previous years, Assessment, Care Management and Planning received
the highest number of complaints.  This is mainly because this service area
is really at the core of the work undertaken by Adult Social Care Services.
This is a service which is provided in-house and consists of the assessment
process and decision making regarding the level and type of service to be
provided.  The teams in this service area consist of different officers
responsible for undertaking the assessment and can be social workers,
occupational therapists, home care assessors or district nurses as in the
case of the Integrated Teams.  Complaints can arise where the service
user’s perception of his/her needs and of the application of eligibility criteria
is in conflict with that of the assessor.
The number of complaints partially upheld in 2016/17 was 13 compared with
8 in 2015/16.  Upheld complaints have also increased this year from 2 in
2015/16 to 4. This does not necessarily mean that the complaint overall was
found to be upheld or partially upheld but can indicate that a particular
element of a complaint was categorised in this way.  As is consistent with
previous years, the majority of complaints were found to be not upheld with a
total of 17.
Figure 5: Number of Complaints Received by Individual Teams in 2016/17
Long Term Support*

25

Learning Disability Team
Commissioning
Safeguarding & DoLS
TOTAL

4
7
3
42

OT Services

3

 *Please note: Long Term Support encompasses a wide range of services including reviews, assessments etc.

45.

Relatives or representatives of service users continue to make the majority of
complaints this year 85% (36), which is consistent with the previous 4 years.

Kingston Community Mental Health
46.

South West London and St Georges’ Mental Health Trust manage the
Community Mental Health Teams on behalf of RBK under a Section 75
agreement.  Therefore a protocol is in place for the Trust to deal with and
monitor all complaints concerning these services.

47.

A total of 27 complaints were received by the Kingston Community Mental
Health Teams (CMHT) in 2016/17, all of which were responded to. There
was a wide variation in the nature of complaints received, concerning
appointments delays and communication to clinical treatment and nursing
care.  The majority of complaints concerned communication with the
Kingston Recovery Support Team, (RST) receiving the highest number at 22.

D10

48.

CMHT complaints are not been included in the overall numbers of complaints
for Adult Social Care.  This will change next year when the Community
Mental Health Teams return to Adult Social Care management. The Trust
has a self-imposed timescale of 25 working days to respond to complaints.
More detail can be found in the Trust’s Annual Report which is published
later in the year.

49.

There were 46 compliments received by Kingston Mental Health Services in
2016/17.

 Learning from Complaints in Adult Social Care
50.

51.

When considering issues raised in complaints, irrespective of the
seriousness of a complaint, it is important to share any learning with other
parts of the organisation as necessary.  A complaint may highlight practice
issues that need to be considered and/or policy matters that should be
reviewed.  One of the most important aspects is also how
complainants/service users view the process and outcomes.
The Adult Complaints Procedure places an emphasis on learning from
complaints and, where appropriate to share learning across the authority.

Learning from complaints and using outcomes and any recommendations
made as a tool for improving and informing existing service provision is vital
for future service development. Regular reporting arrangements for
management teams have been established for sharing the lessons learned.
Example of Complaint and Learning:

52.

A service user was being transferred to a new placement by the London
Ambulance at night. The service user had some equipment, and a specialist
bed which needed to be transferred with her but London Ambulance was not
able to transport this.  Although an alternative provider had been organised to
move the equipment, upon arrival they found that the bed could not be taken
apart and folded easily for transportation.

In addition, the bed had not been supplied by RBK and therefore the company
was not equipped to move this particular item. As the specialist bed was
essential to the service user’s care, she had to return to her previous placement
until suitable arrangements could be made to transfer the equipment at the
same time as the service user.
The service user’s son made a formal complaint as this has been a stressful
experience for his mother at a time when she was already anxious and
apprehensive about the new placement.

Unfortunately, the duty OT worker took at face value that this was a community
bed, they had been told that there had been a problem moving the bed on a
previous move which they mistakenly took to mean that the bed had been
supplied by the OT service/nurses.

There should have been more checking about the type of bed and riser recliner
chair and who had supplied them. This would have meant that it would have
been identified that the OT service should not have asked the alternative
provider to move the equipment and then advised the Social Worker
accordingly.

D11
The duty OT worker should have sought advice from duty senior and or team
manager for this unusual request instead of making decisions and actions on
their own, even though these were made with the best of intentions. (Duty was
particularly busy on the days in question which puts added pressure on the
worker to deal with things quickly).

This complaint and the outcome was discussed at the team meeting and the
learning shared across the team.
Compliments received by Adult Social Care Services 2016/17
53.

Social Care Services received 24 compliments throughout the year 2016/17.
This compares to last year’s total of 30.  The compliments received
concerned all service areas and were made by users, carers, relatives,
friends and professionals.

Procedural Arrangements - Children’s Social Care
54.

55.

The Children’s Act 1989 Representations Procedure (England) Regulations
2006, Children (Leaving Care) Act 2000, the Adoption and Children Act 2002
and the Health and Social Care Act 2003, requires the local authority to have
in place a procedure for resolving complaints and representations received
by or on behalf of, children and young people.
There continues to be a three stage process to the procedure for complaints
concerning children’s social care with an emphasis on trying to resolve
complaints at an early stage and as swiftly as possible.  These stages are:
Stage 1 – Local Resolution
Stage 2 – Formal Investigation
Stage 3 – Review Panel

Stage 1 - Local Resolution
Where possible the complaint is dealt with by the manager of the service
area implicated.
Stage 2 - Investigation Arrangements
The appointed Investigating Officer has 25 working days in which to
complete the investigation and produce a report, with a possible extension to
65 working days where it is not feasible to complete the report within the
standard timescale.  Any extension has to be agreed with the complainant.
Independent Person
The local authority is required to appoint an Independent Person (someone
who is not an officer of or the partner of an officer of the local authority) to
shadow the investigation where the complaint involves a child or young
person.  The Independent Person must also produce a written report
independently from the Investigating Officer.
Stage 3 - Independent Review Panels
A Review Panel must be held within 30 working days of the receipt of a
request for a review.  Following the review, the Panel has 5 working days to
produce its written report after which the relevant Director has 15 working
days in which to issue his/her response to the complainant.

Recording Complaint Outcomes
56.

D12

There are three main categories for recording the outcome of a complaint:
Upheld

Partially
Upheld

This is where the Local Authority has accepted responsibility for the
concern or issue raised. This would be acknowledged by a detailed letter
of apology and clarification with reasons and remedies for the matter. It
would also include actions to ensure such a complaint does not recur in
the future.

The Local Authority accepts some responsibility for part of the complaint.
A response outlining the part that is upheld is sent, stating reasons and
proposed corrective measures.

Not Upheld This usually means that the complaint was investigated but no fault or
error was found. We would explain carefully and thoroughly our reasons
for our conclusion, providing support evidence where possible.

Complaint Statistics and Issues by Service Area
Children’s Social Care
57.

The total number of complaints recorded for Children’s Social Care in
2016/17 was 30.

Figure 6: Performance Indicators for Children’s Social Care Complaints

Performance Indicator
COMPLIMENTS AND COMPLAINTS

16/17
YTD (Apr-Mar)

No. of formal compliments made by children/YP to CSC

3

No. of Stage 1 Complaints to CSC received

27

No. of Stage 1 Complaints to CSC closed

25

No. of Stage 1 Complaints made by children & young people

3 all via advocate

No. of complaints escalated to Formal Investigation (Stage 2)
% of Investigations completed within agreed timescale (Stage 1 only)
No. of Review Panels (Stage 3) held
No of Stage 1 complaints open at end of period
No of Stage 2 complaints open at end of period

4
86%
0
1
1

                       Note:  The two complaints open at the end of 2016/17 are carried over to 2017/18

58.

Determining shared themes for complaints, especially in social care, can be
difficult.  It may be that a number of complaints are made to the same service
area but as complaints are so individual a pattern or trend will not always
emerge.  However, complaints are reviewed regularly and if a trend is
identified appropriate action is taken.

D13

59.

Complaints are also monitored in respect of outcomes.  If a number of
complaints from the same service area were found to be upheld or partially
upheld then those complaints would be subject to closer scrutiny.
Figure 7: Number of complaints received for each service area and outcome:
Service Area

RBK

Total

Upheld

Partially Upheld

Not Upheld

   1

    2

    7

  10

   0

     1

  10

  11

Fostering

   0

     1

   0

  1

Adoption and Permanency

   0

     0

     1

   1

Leaving Care and UASC

   0

    0

     3

  3

Referral and Assessment

   1

    1

     2

   4

   2

   5

   23

 30

Looked After Children and Young People
Safeguarding
(Child Protection)

SPA
Total

60.

In 2016/17 the Complaints and Information Access Officer (CIAO) managed
30 complaints in relation to children’s social care.  Of this total there has
been 4 Stage 2 investigation and no Stage 3 Review Panels.  As in previous
years, the majority of complaints were found to be not upheld, although 3
were upheld and 5 partially upheld.  There continues to be some
improvement in meeting the 10 working day timescale at Stage 1, although
14% of complaint responses breached the target.
However, there has been a commitment to provide a full and thorough
response at the initial stage and although this has led to escalation in
response time targets on occasions, it has ensured that in the majority,
complainants have been satisfied with their individual response.

D14

Recording Complaint Outcomes
61.

Most complaints received in 2016/17 can at least in part be attributed to
social work which continues to be consistent with previous years. This is a
service area which, by its very nature, tends to receive the highest proportion
of complaints.  There are a number of reasons why this is unsurprising.

62.

A social worker or key worker working with a child or young person, often has
to make difficult and/or unpopular decisions about their care or placement.
This can lead to unhappiness and dissatisfaction and although every effort is
made to try to resolve any issues that may arise, occasionally lack of
resolution may result in a formal complaint being made.  However, the
majority of such complaints are usually resolved at the initial stage.

63.

Formal investigations have increased this year from one in 2015/16 to four.

64.

Complaints from children and young people directly have remained the same
as last year with three being recorded in 2016/17.  All of these complaints
were made with the support of an advocate.

65.

This is of course only a very small percentage of complaints received and
work will continue in respect of promoting the complaints service to children
and young people to make it as easy as possible to tell us if they are
unhappy and ensure that their voice is heard.

66.

An independent element is introduced at both the investigative and review
stages of the complaints process as this is a legislative requirement.  The
independent element for shadowing complaint investigations as well as
Review Panels is usually taken from an established group of people who
volunteered to carry out this work after being recommended by local
voluntary organisations.

67.

However, in some instances professional independent investigators are
commissioned.  This can happen where expertise in a particular area is
desirable or there are real difficulties in identifying an officer from the Council
to undertake the investigation either because of the officer’s workload/
commitments or due to a lack of suitable training.

68.

All investigations concerning children’s services must be shadowed by an
independent person (someone from outside the Council).  Using Independent
Investigators does of course have significant financial implications.

69.

Response times have improved in 2016/17 with the average response being
9 days, coming just within the 10 working day timescale.

70.

The Council’s Complaints Procedure recognises that in some instances it is
beneficial to allow an extension of time to service providers who are trying to
resolve complaints at Stage 1 local resolution.  This is of course, always with
the agreement of the complainant.

Figure 9

D15
Timescales for Responding Complaints 2016/17

Stage 1 (Problem Solving)
Number of Complaints
Average Response Time
(working days)
Stage 2 (Formal Investigation)
Number of Complaints
Average Response Time
(working days)
Stage 3 (Review)
Number of Complaints
Average Response Time
(working days)

71.

72.

73.

74.

75.

Apr –
 Jun

Jul –
 Sep

Oct –
Dec

Jan –
Mar

Total

    12

   8

    6

4

30

     11

   10

    11

 9

11

1

2

1

0

 1

33

25

35

0

 29.5

0

0

0

0

0

0

 0

0

0

0

Target

10

30

 30

When recording complaints, it is recognised practice to define an issue of
complaint under one of four categories. These are, Decision Making Process,
Service Quality, Service Delivery and Service Standards.  In 2016/17 20
complaints concerned the Decision Making Process, 4 Service Quality, 4
Service Delivery and 2 Service Standards.
Children’s social care received 1147 referrals in 2016/17 compared to 1434
referrals in the previous year.  There was a re-referral rate of 12% against
17% in 2015/16. 97% (1109/1147) of referrals progressed to a single
assessment. 1852 single assessments were completed within 45 working
days from a total of 1929 (96%).

Of the referrals received some cases may well only need a minimal amount
of input for a specified period.  However, with the strict criteria for service that
needs to be applied it is likely that the majority of open cases will require
some considerable input and in particular cases this may mean contact with
social workers for many years.  The number of complaints represents 2.6%
of referrals.
As with last year, there has been a small increase in compliments received in
2016/17 with an increase of 2 on the previous year’s total of 8.
Example of a Complaint in Children’s Social Care
A complaint was received from the mother of a young child who was the subject of a
child protection plan.  The complainant contacted the Council as she was unhappy
with her child’s allocated social worker.
The complainant alleged that the social worker’s attitude was unprofessional
because she had cancelled an announced home visit at short notice. The
complainant explained that her partner had taken time off work to attend the
appointment and this has resulted in loss of income unnecessarily.

D16

She also made reference to the loss of her partner’s previous employment and
alleged that this was the fault of the social worker as she had alerted the former
employer of an offence for which the complainant’s partner had been prosecuted.
The complaint was received, acknowledged and recorded by the CIAO, who then
contacted the relevant team leader and asked him to look into the issues raised and
to respond directly to the complainant within 10 working days.
The response acknowledged the fact that the home visit was cancelled at short
notice due to an emergency arising with another case and the team leader
apologised for this and for the potential loss of her partner’s earnings.
With regard to the previous employment issue, the team leader explained that the
decision to inform the employer of the offence committed by the complainant’s
partner was not one taken in isolation.  The decision was an outcome from a
multi-agency group which included the police, social services and health
professionals.
The response from team leader concluded with an offer to meet with the
complainant to discuss her concerns further and explained how to progress her
complaint further should she remain dissatisfied.
The complaint did not progress further.

Compliments received by Children’s Social Care
76.

Children’s Social Care received 10 compliments this year, compared with 8
in 2015/16.  One compliment stated:

“I must tell you that these two little boys are receiving really excellent care all
round.  The work that the social worker is doing, combined with a fantastic foster
carer and independent fostering agency who are providing top quality support and
supervision is really impressive. It was a pleasure to see how well this placement is
going and how much progress the boys are making”.

Conclusions
77.

78.

79.

80.

The Complaints and Information Access Officer (CIAO) handles many issues
concerning both adult and children’s social care prior to them escalating to
‘formal’ complaints.  Usually these issues can be resolved to the individual’s
satisfaction and do not progress further.
The CIAO also acts as a ‘one-stop’ point of contact for persistent
complainants.  This is in order to try and alleviate the pressure from
individual officer’s and/or specific teams. Instigation of this process was
required on two occasions in 2016/17.

Whilst it is the responsibility of managers to ensure that all responses to
complaints are of a high standard, that they address all of the issues of
complaints and are clear, concise and easy to understand.  It is the
responsibility of the CIAO to ensure that standards are set, maintained and
regularly monitored.

There is a collective responsibility to ensure that we are continually learning
from complaints and that outcomes and recommendations influences policy
and practice where appropriate.

Adults and Children’s Committee

E1

Appendix E

1 February 2018
Budget Report 2018-19 to 2021-22
Report by the Interim Chief Financial Officer
Purpose
To set out the proposed budget for 2018/19 to 2021/22 and the detailed information required
to enable this Committee to make recommendations to inform the Treasury Committee’s
recommendations to Budget Council on 27 February 2018.
Recommendation of the Portfolio Holder for Treasury
To Resolve that the proposals in the budget report regarding the 2018/19 budget for services
within the remit of this Committee within the remit of this Committee be RECOMMENDED to
the Treasury Committee.
Key Points
A.

A separate document, entitled ‘Budget Report 2018/19 to 2021/22’ has been
published alongside this agenda and has been dispatched as a separate
document to all Members. Members are requested to bring this with them to the
meeting. The references in this report refer to that Budget Report pack. That
document comprises the budget proposals for all service areas.

B.

This Committee is asked to consider the budget proposals relating to services within
its remit. The outcome of these discussions will inform a recommendation to Treasury
Committee who will cover the overall draft budget and make recommendations to
Council, where the formal decisions on the budget and Council Tax level for 2018/19
will be taken.

C.

In order to deliver a balanced and deliverable set of budget proposals, officers have
developed a new approach - No Stone Unturned. The aim of this approach has been
to build on the Outcome Based Budgeting approach used successfully in previous
years, by both reviewing all areas of spending, but to approach the delivery of savings
through a range of cross cutting strategic initiatives.

D.

No Stone Unturned encompasses a major review of the way resources are used,
through re-creating the role of the Council, redesigning work (lean thinking, digital by
design, doing things differently), managing demand and enabling communities to be
resilient and self sufficient, as well as increase the level of commercialism and income
generation.

E.

A number of foundation workshops were held for Members and Officers - these built a
level of understanding of the scale of the financial challenge facing RBK, and also of
why a new and transformational approach is required to meet this challenge.

F.

Since the workshops, a number of detailed work streams have been progressed and
identified savings through a range of cross cutting initiatives under the following
theme areas:
● Income, commercialisation and commissioning
● Growth, Housing and Property
● Demand Management and Customer
● Workforce

E2

G.

Alongside the proposals arising from the No Stone Unturned programme, some
service specific proposals are proposed as a result of business as usual changes and
others remain in the budget proposals as a continuation of the medium term plan
agreed in 2017.

H.

In relation to the remit of this committee, Members are asked to refer in particular to
the following items:
1.

Budgetary growth has been provided for Adult Social Care, Looked after
Children and Housing as set out in paragraphs 97 to 113

Budget reductions are shown in Annex 4 of the report. These include a
number of items which relate to Achieving for Children and some specific to
Adult Social Care and to Housing. All areas of the Council will also be
expected to be part of the corporate delivery of the No Stone Unturned
savings.

2.

Additions to the capital programme are set out in Annex 8. This includes
additions to the rolling programmes of work in relation to the schools building
programme and housing general fund programme. There are also specific new
projects within the General Fund Property Programme relating to the assets
used in the delivery of services within this Committee’s remit.

3.

Consultations
1.

No specific consultation has been carried out in relation to the budget as a whole
but any necessary consultation will be carried out as part of the detailed
implementation plan for specific proposals.

Timescale
2.

After consideration by the Strategic Committees, the Budget will be considered and
recommended for approval by Council on 27 February 2018.

Resource Implications
3.

All resource implications are contained within the Budget Report pack.

Legal Implications
4.

All legal implications are contained within the Budget Report pack.

Risk Assessment
5.

A financial risk assessment is contained within the Budget Report pack

Equalities Impact Assessment
6.

An equalities impact assessment has been undertaken and is disclosed within the
budget report pack.

Environmental, Road Network and Air Quality Implications
7.

There are no direct environmental, road network or air quality implications arising
from this report. Any environmental implications of specific proposals will be
considered as part of the detailed implementation plan of those proposals.

Background papers - None other than those referred to in this report
Author of report - Rachel Howard, Head of RBK Financial Strategy and Reporting,
Telephone 020 8547 5709, email: rachel.howard@kingston.gov.uk

Adults and Children’s Committee

F1

Appendix F

1 February 2018
HRA Budget for 2018-19
Report by the Deputy Chief Executive and Interim Chief Financial Officer (Section 151
Officer)
Call-in deadline Thursday 15 February 2018 (ten working days after the meeting)

Purpose
The Committee will consider any comments from the Housing Sub-Committee on 23 January
2018 on the HRA budget proposals and make the necessary decisions to set rent levels for
2018-19.
Recommendations of the Portfolio Holder for Treasury
To Resolve that -

1. the HRA 2018-19 base budget and proposal for growth and savings as set out in this report
be approved;
2. the 2018-19 rent policy be agreed, subject to the constraints identified in paragraph 5 and
10 of the report;
3. the 2018-19 rent decrease of 1% as directed by Government and detailed in paragraph 5 of
the report be agreed;
4. that the 2018-19 rents for HRA Hostels, non-dwellings and other non-Housing dwellings
owned by the Council increase in line with inflation at 3% as detailed in para. 12 of the
report;
5. the indicative HRA revenue budgets for 2018-19 to 2021-22 set out in Annex 3 be
approved;
6. The additions and full HRA Capital Programme as described in paragraph 18 to 19 with
detail in Annex 5 be noted.

Key Points
A.

The Council is required to maintain a Housing Revenue Account (HRA) which is
ring-fenced from the Council’s other budgets and is a record of all revenue expenditure
and income relating to the Authority’s own housing stock. The Council is required to set
a budget which avoids a deficit on its HRA position at the end of the year.

B.

The main source of income for the HRA is rents paid by tenants and service charges,
which comprise income from leaseholder service charges and charges paid by tenants
for specific services. These resources can only be spent on services related to the
provision of Council Housing, with the largest item of expense being the revenue cost of
capital investment in the Council’s Housing stock through contributions to the Major
Repairs Reserve.

C.

The HRA business plan financial model has been reviewed and updated in order to
inform the budget for 2018-19 and medium term plan to 2021-22. The revised
assumptions take into account national policy changes as well as local information on
any changes to service provision and support functions.

D.

Key changes to the HRA were introduced in the Housing and Planning Act 2016 which
took effect from April 2016. One of the key changes from 2016-17 was for rents to be
reduced by 1% per annum for four years. The rent reduction policy is clearly welcome
news for tenants and will have a positive effect on their personal finances. However it

F2
has a significant and detrimental effect on Kingston’s HRA financial position and
therefore puts at risk the level of services the council can provide to those tenants.

E.

Making best use of the HRA to ensure that there is both ongoing investment in current
homes and communities, and the ability to build much needed new homes is a key
principle. This is consistent with the current consultation on the New Housing Model, the
approach to regenerating the Cambridge Road Estate and other opportunities to
maximise the potential for investment and new homes. This report therefore includes
prudent assumptions, but as specific proposals become clearer this may have an impact
on the HRA and there may be additional costs to be funded within both revenue and
capital budgets.

F.

The capital programme for 2018/19 is set out in more detail later in this report. The
revenue constraints arising from rent reductions, the limit of indebtedness (debt cap)
and the use of retained Right to Buy (RTB) 1-4-1 receipts combine to limit the scope of
capital projects that can be delivered within the HRA.

G.

Changes to the operation of the HRA budget have led to additional risks which are dealt
with in greater detail in Annex 4 to the report.

2018/19 Proposed Budget and Indicative Budgets 2019/20 – 2021/22
1.

The proposed budget for 2018/19 is shown in Annex 1, the 2018/19 key changes
in Annex 2 and the indicative 2018/19 – 2021/22 budgets in Annex 3. The starting
point for building the budget was the existing budget for 2017/18.

2.

A number of growth items have been added and savings taken. Inflation has been
kept to a minimum with an allowance for salary inflation in relation to the Local
Government pay award, and a small increase in other lines of expenditure in line
with contractual obligations. The result of these changes is a requirement to draw
£732k from reserves in order to mitigate a deficit on the revenue account. The
result is a projected reduction in HRA reserves to £3.8m. From 2020/21 the HRA
reserve is expected to start increasing again and projected to achieve a balance of
£6.58m by 2021/22 as the service achieves surpluses on the revenue account.
Further information is given in the resources implications section of this report.

3.

Further details of the major changes are given below.

HRA Rents
4.

Under Self-Financing the funds for maintaining and developing Housing stock can
only be generated through rental income and so this is a key part of the budget.

5.

Government policy which directs the setting of rents changed with effect from April
2016; the proposed budget includes plans to ensure social housing rents are
reduced by 1% per annum for four years starting in 2016/17. This change resulted
in a significant reduction in rental income for the HRA from 2016/17 to 2019/20,
estimated to be in the region of £1m per annum compared to previous HRA
business plan assumptions. 2018-19 will be the third year of rent reductions.

6.

This reduction in income prompted an in-depth review of the HRA business plan to
take place prior to setting the 2016-17 budget and further reviews have been
undertaken in 2017-18 including considering a new housing delivery model in
order to reach the proposed budget for 2018-19.

7.

For 2018/19 in cash terms this policy gives a rent reduction of £0.76 per week on
social rents from an average rent of £113.44 to £112.67. This is above the limit
set for Housing Benefit (HB) Subsidy of £112.38. As the average rent is greater
than the Housing Benefit Subsidy limit there is a loss of subsidy to the General

F3
Fund, which will be covered from the HRA. Based on the figures above that loss is
estimated to be £0.047m in 2018/19. The outturn average rent may well reduce or
increase depending upon factors such as actual voids during the year and this will
impact on whether there is any Housing Benefit Subsidy loss.

8.

RBK is required (through an agreement with the Secretary of State for
Communities and Local Government signed in 2012) to use RTB receipts accruing
from the government’s reinvigorating right to buy policy (1-4-1) to re-provide
affordable rented housing. This can be done through a number of means including
building homes directly, grant-funding a registered provider (RP) to provide new
affordable housing or acquiring properties on the open market.

9.

The council has pursued a programme of acquisitions since the third quarter of
2016/17 funded from 1-4-1 receipts and borrowing. The numbers of properties
acquired are low but represent a significant investment from the HRA. Rent
charging is important for the acquisition as RBK needs to make a sufficient return
on the investment in order to be able to cover the repayment of related debt
financing commitments.

10.

The affordable rent allowed by government to be charged under this policy means
the Council can charge a minimum of the formula rent for these properties and a
maximum of 80% of the market rent to recoup its investment and enable the
replacement of sold units. Regulations around the use of this money allow for the
rent from these properties to be outside the housing benefit subsidy scheme. It is
proposed that the rents for these properties are set at an affordable rent equivalent
to the Local Housing Allowance (LHA) for these properties.

Provision for bad debts
11.

A significant risk to the 2018/19 HRA budget is the loss of net income from rents
as a result of bad and irrecoverable debts. This is expected from changes to
Housing Benefit and the introduction of Universal Credit which could reduce the
monies available to tenants and lead to increased arrears and bad debts. The
annual contribution to bad debts provision has been increased from 1.5% of rents
to 1.8% of rents (i.e. £0.049m) in recognition of this risk.

Other rents and charges
12.

It is proposed that rents on HRA Hostels, non-dwellings and other non-Housing
dwellings owned by the Council be increased in line with inflation at 3%. It is also
proposed that the service charge be increased at that rate.

Cost of borrowing
13.

The cost of borrowing arises primarily from the interest on the loans taken out to
implement Self Financing. These loans of £115.7m attract an interest rate of
3.37% with a smaller balance of loans (£14.4m) taken out prior to Self-Financing
attracting a higher rate of 5.14%.

14.

The first of the Self-Financing loans matures in 2028/29 and the updated 30 year
HRA business plan forecasts that the HRA balances will start to accumulate after
delivery of the Better Homes programme to allow repayment of this debt as it
becomes due.

Depreciation and other capital funded from revenue
15.

A depreciation charge representing the loss of value in the capital stock during the
year is made to the Housing Revenue Account (the major part of this is on
components such as kitchens and bathrooms). The depreciation charge of £8.9m

F4
is the largest single area of expenditure in the HRA so any future year changes
could have a significant effect on the HRA budget. The depreciation charge
provides funding for capital expenditure or the repayment of debt through the
Major Repairs Reserve.

16.

Where an additional amount is set aside in revenue to fund capital expenditure
(Direct Revenue Financing or DRF) this also forms part of the contribution to the
Major Repairs Reserve. Given the constraints on the 2018/19 HRA budget, no
revenue budget has been set aside to fund capital expenditure.

Revenue growth and savings
17.

The key changes in the 2018/19 proposed budgets are detailed in Annex 2.
Income Budgets are reduced by £0.256m, technical adjustments will result in
growth in the HRA of £0.832m, and services budget growth of £0.406m and
savings £1.210m.

Capital
18.

The HRA capital programme is set primarily to implement the Better Homes
programme, increase supply from the government’s invigorating right to buy policy
and to address a small programme of planned works to estates and other demand
driven projects. The proposed programme over 5 years amounts to £61.2m and
incorporates all the known commitments at this stage. It is a rolling capital
programme and in future years may include additions and changes based on
affordability and future opportunities/developments to be identified through the
business planning process. This is shown in summary below with further detail
provided in Annex 5:
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21

Existing HRA Capital Programme

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Total
£000s

Better Homes

5,182

4,315

0

0

9,497

Planned Capital Projects

1,779

900

900

800

4,379

Demand Driven Capital Projects

1,387

820

820

820

3,847

Other Capital Projects

4,312

2,400

7,400

5,400

19,512

1-4-1-Delivering Projects

7,714

5,746

0

0

13,460

700

220

0

0

920

21,074

14,401

9,120

7,020

51,615

Estate Regeneration
Total

F5

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 Total
Additions to HRA Capital Programme

£000s

Better Homes

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

0

0

0

0

0

2,780

2,750

1,350

1,850

8,730

Demand Driven Capital Projects

0

0

0

820

820

Other Capital Projects

0

0

0

0

0

1-4-1-Delivering Projects

0

0

0

0

0

Estate Regeneration

0

0

0

0

0

2,780

2,750

1,350

2,670

9,550

Planned Capital Projects

Total

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 Total
Total HRA Capital Programme

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Better Homes

5,182

4,315

0

0

0

9,497

Planned Capital Projects

1,779

3,680

3,650

2,150

1,850

13,109

Demand Driven Capital Projects

1,387

820

820

820

820

4,667

Other Capital Projects

4,312

2,400

7,400

5,400

0

19,512

1-4-1-Delivering Projects

7,714

5,746

0

0

0

13,460

700

220

0

0

0

920

21,074

17,181

11,870

8,370

2,670

61,165

Estate Regeneration
Total
19.

The funding for this programme of works is shown in the following table:
HRA Capital Programme
2017-18
Funding 2017-18 to 2021-22 £000s

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22
£000s £000s £000s
£000s

Leaseholder Receipts

1,500

1,500

1,500

1,000

1,000

RTB Receipts
Other Capital Receipts

3,275
880

3,224
1,333

1,500
265

1,500
0

1,500
0

0

0

0

0

0

8,364
7,055

8,906
2,218

8,605

5,870

170

21,074

17,181

11,870

8,370

2,670

Other Sources Total
Major Repairs Reserve
Borrowing
Total
Consultations
20.

There have been no public consultations specific to these proposals. The key
decisions around rent levels are determined by Government policy.

F6

Timescale
21.

The Adults and Children’s Committee will consider the HRA budget proposals at
their meeting on 1 February 2018 and make the necessary decisions to set rent
levels for 2018-19.

Resource Implications
22.

In preparing the Council’s General Fund Budget and Council Tax, the Section 151
Officer is required by the Local Government Act 2003 to report on the robustness
of the Council’s financial estimates and adequacy of reserves. The formal legal
requirements do not apply to the HRA where there are no implications for Council
Tax, however the same issues are relevant for the HRA budget and best practice
suggests that the same considerations are made in respect of this budget.

23.

The purpose of the comments of the Section 151 Officer on the robustness of the
estimates is to give assurance that risk is appropriately managed and that there is
a legitimate expectation that likely eventualities are provided for within the budget.
It is not intended (nor possible) to give a guarantee that the budget is sufficient to
cover all possible scenarios (however unlikely), nor that income and expenditure
will occur exactly as budgeted. It is concerned with whether the plan is a sound
one or not.

24.

In reaching a conclusion on the robustness of the estimates, the Section 151
Officer has taken into account a number of factors including:
(i)

The budget proposals have been developed following guidance from the
Section 151 Officer and have been subject to a rigorous process of
development and challenge

(ii)

Expected levels of inflation are provided for to protect the real terms value of
budgets

(iii)

Known areas of expenditure pressure have been provided for and prudent
estimates made about interest rates.

(iv) The Council is operating with a strengthened approach to budgetary control
which has successfully dealt with in year financial challenges as they have
occurred.
(v)

Delivery against savings targets will be monitored separately and corrective
action taken where necessary.

(vi) The revenue effects of the capital programme have been reflected in the
budget.
(vii) Any recommended increases in fees and charges are consistent with the
assumptions in the budget.
25.

Based on this analysis, the Section 151 officer reports that the revenue and capital
estimates given in this report are robust as if covered by Section 25 of the Local
Government Act 2003.

26.

Section 25 of the Act requires the Council, in setting its budget, to maintain an
‘adequate level of controlled reserves’. The Section 151 Officer is required to
provide appropriate advice to the Council on the adequacy of its reserves, both
those which are earmarked for specific purposes and for the General Fund
balance.

27.

To inform this judgement, the Section 151 Officer has carried out a financial risk
analysis of the Council’s proposed budget. This is detailed in Annex 4. Based on
budget monitoring information reported at Month 8, the forecast balance at 1 April

F7
2018 on the reserves is £4.536m. £3m is considered to be the minimum needed to
cover against the risks identified in Annex 4 as well as any risks yet to be
identified.

Legal Implications
28.

None

Risk Assessment
29.

The risk analysis related to this proposal is included at Annex 4.

Equalities Impact Assessment
30.

There is no change to existing policy proposed within this report and therefore no
Equalities Impact Assessment is required.

Road Network Implications
31.

None

Environmental (including Air Quality) Implications
32.

Improvements to housing will positively influence the sustainability of the stock and
help the Council to meet its environmental objectives for example by reducing heat
loss through enhanced external fabric improvements.

Background papers held by author of the report - Miguel Fernandez, Head of Finance
Engagement and Advice, tel: 020 8547 5955, email: Miguel.Fernandez@sutton.gov.uk, .
o

None

other than those referred to in this report

F8

Annex 1
2018/19 PROPOSED HRA BUDGET
Description
INCOME:
Rental Income
Void Losses
Service Charges
Non-Dwelling Income
Grants & Other Income
Interest Received
Transfer to/(from) reserves
Gross Income

EXPENDITURE:
General Management
Special Management
Other Management
Bad Debt Provision
Responsive & Cyclical Repairs
Interest Paid
Finance Administration
Depreciation & DRF
Gross Expenditure
(Surplus) / Deficit for the year
Balance on the HRA at start of
the year
Balance on the HRA at the end
of the year

2017/18
Budget
£000

Changes

2018/19
Budget
£000

(27,724)
553
(2,319)
(298)
(1,019)
(10)
0
(30,818)

348
(12)
(70)
(64)
(100)
(3)
0
100

(27,376)
542
(2,389)
(362)
(1,119)
(13)
0
(30,717)

6,739
1,451
4,774
414
4,594
4,911
18
8,364
31,265

(650)
53
(16)
49
(87)
292
0
542
183

6,089
1,504
4,758
463
4,507
5,203
18
8,906
31,449

448

284

732
(4,536)
(3,804)

F9

Annex 2
2018/19 PROPOSED HRA BUDGET – KEY CHANGES

Item
No.

Description of Proposed Budget – Key Changes
1
2
3
4

5
6
7

8
9
10

11
12
13

2018/19
£000

Rental Income - 1% rent reduction & RTB sales
Reduction in void losses - dwellings
Reduction in void losses - non dwellings
Grants & Other Income - income from new lease on
Greenleas

348
(12)
(50)

Total Income Changes

256

Increase in depreciation & direct revenue financing of
capital
Increase in interest received
Increase in interest paid
Total Technical Adjustments
New Housing Model invest to save
Expected increase in bad debt provision from UC
rollout
Inflation - Salary, Supplies and Services
Total Growth
New Housing Model savings on general and special
management
New Housing Model savings on responsive and
general repairs
Estate regeneration funding reduction
Total Savings
Net Changes

(30)

542
(3)
292
832
250
49
107
406
(900)
(100)
(210)
(1,210)
284

F10

Annex 3

INDICATIVE ESTIMATES 2018/19 TO 2021/22

Description
INCOME:
Rental Income
Void Losses
Service Charges
Non-Dwelling Income
Grants & Other Income
Interest Received
Transfer to/(from) reserves
Gross Income

EXPENDITURE:
General Management
Special Management
Other Management
Bad Debt Provision
Responsive & Cyclical Repairs
Interest Paid
Finance Administration
Depreciation & DRF
Gross Expenditure
(Surplus) / Deficit for the year
Balance on the HRA at start of the
year
Balance on the HRA at the end of
the year

2018/19
Budget
£000

2019/20
Budget
£000

2020/21
Budget
£000

2021/22
Budget
£000

(27,376)
542
(2,389)
(362)
(1,119)
(13)
0
(30,717)

(27,347)
542
(2,451)
(375)
(1,192)
(11)
0
(30,833)

(27,529)
546
(2,505)
(387)
(1,230)
(16)
0
(31,121)

(28,406)
563
(2,560)
(399)
(1,269)
(22)
0
(32,094)

6,089
1,504
4,758
463
4,507
5,203
18
8,906
31,449

5,707
1,543
4,866
464
4,080
5,267
18
8,906
30,851

4,830
1,577
4,928
466
4,099
5,267
18
8,914
30,098

4,915
1,612
4,990
480
4,118
5,260
18
8,927
30,320

732

19

(1,022)

(1,774)

(4,536)

(3,804)

(3,786)

(4,808)

(3,804)

(3,786)

(4,808)

(6,582)

F11

Annex 4

RISK ANALYSIS
1. Under Self-Financing there are many risks that have been identified as outlined below:
●

The Welfare Reform and Work Act 2016 introduced a change in the
Government’s rent policy from 2016/17 to 2019/20. Instead of an increase in
rent of CPI+1% on 2015/16, 2016/17 rents are being reduced by 1% from their
2015/16 level and will continue to be reduced by 1% each year taking us up to
2019/20. This is a substantial reduction in the rental income (estimated at £1m
per annum for each of the next 4 years) compared to what it would have been if
rents had increased by CPI +1%.

●

The Housing and Planning Act 2016 introduced the funding of the Housing
Associations’ RTB discounts from Local Authorities’ funds. This potentially
involves Local Authorities’ Housing being given a financial “target” and paying
the financial target by selling high value void stock. In effect capital receipts that
would have been retained by RBK may have to be paid over to fund Housing
Associations’ RTB discounts. At the time of setting this budget the financial
target for RBK and exact implementation of this policy are unknown. Although
Central Government has confirmed this will not be implemented during 18/19.

●

The Government’s introduction of Universal Credit, with all benefits paid directly
to tenants (unlike Housing Benefit which is paid directly to the HRA Landlord)
increases the probability of bad debts.

●

The Government may choose to reduce the level of benefits payable and thus
further reduce the ability of our tenants to pay increasing rents.

●

RTB sales reduce housing stock and rent income so government policy
changes that encourage more RTB sales could result in significant loss of rental
income which might be difficult to replace.

●

Void properties result in loss of income so if the level of voids is higher than
budgeted, for example as a result of the redevelopment of sheltered housing or
estate regeneration, there would be additional loss of net income.

●

Management and maintenance costs could increase more than rents.

●

Investment in council stock could be subject to cost pressures or be in schemes
that are not priorities or value for money.

●

Recovery of costs from leaseholders for works undertaken may be reduced
through non-payment or late payment of charges.

2.

In practice these risks could be summarised as loss of net rental income and loss of
effective control of the capital programme and both could result in a reduction in the
actual improvements to the Council’s stock.

3.

In preparing the budgets a number of specific measures have been addressed:
●

Allowance has been made for a gap between the CLG limit on borrowing and
what is actually proposed.

●

Rents have been reviewed to ensure that budgeted amounts are achievable

●

Provisions for bad debts have been reviewed to ensure they are adequate

●

F12
The Authority has chosen not to make a voluntary revenue provision for the
repayment of loans, in order to avoid reducing reserves and to allow reserves to
accumulate in future.

4.

Borrowing Limits - Under Self Financing the DCLG has imposed a limit of £150m on
HRA borrowing in addition to the borrowing being covered by the Prudential Code.

5.

Use of 141 receipts - The 141 receipts have arisen from the retained element of the
RTB sales receipts and must be spent on replacement affordable housing units..
There are various rules surrounding the use of these receipts and they need to be
spent by the 13th quarter from when they arose. If they have not been spent then
the receipt needs to be paid back to DCLG along with interest at 4% above the
base rate (currently 0.50%) i.e. 4.50%. The Housing service is reviewing these
receipts and potential schemes that these funds could be used on. Further updates
to follow during 2018/19

6.

The 2018/19 depreciation budget is based on the asset valuation as at March 2017.
The asset valuation at March 2018 will be used as the basis of the actual charge for
2018/19, therefore there is a risk the figures may change.

7.

Estate Regeneration - The revenue budget includes programme management costs
and certain consultancy / professional fees, whilst the capital budget includes
master planning costs. There is a risk that further costs may need to be funded by
RBK through revenue and/or capital budgets.

8.

Water Charges Commission –the Southwark Judgement relating to Thames Water
Agency Agreement results in a significant financial risk to the HRA, but we are
unable to quantify this at present as it depends upon the legal advice received and
subsequent legal challenges.

9.

New Housing Model - the proposed changes are currently subject to consultation so
prudent assumptions have been made which will be revisited and adjusted
depending on this. The 2018/19 budget assumes savings amounting to £1m in
2018/19 and rising by £1m per year till 2020/21 when it peaks at £3m have been
assumed in the HRA, which would then be used to both invest in current and new
homes and in supporting vulnerable residents, as well as ensure that the HRA has
a minimum cash balance of £4m and a borrowing limit below the headroom of £10m
have been assumed in the medium term in the HRA.

10.

Reserves - It is estimated that general reserves at the start of 2018/19 will be about
£4.536m. This is considered to be adequate and is more than 10% of the total
annual income

F13

Annex 5
HRA Capital Programme 2017-18 to 2021-22

EXISTING HRA CAPITAL PROGRAMME
BETTER HOMES

ROLLING BUDG
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET ET
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Total

BUDGET BUDGET
2017/18 2018/19
5,131

4,315

0

0

9,446

51

0

0

0

51

5,182

4,315

0

0

SCS/Keystone - renewals

0

0

5,000

5,000

10,000

Affordable Housing Partner Work

0

2,000

2,000

0

4,000

400

400

400

400

1,600

1,100

0

0

0

1,100

55 Mount Pleasant

375

0

0

0

375

TADLOW BUY BACKS

997

0

0

0

997

Housing Management Solutions

750

0

0

0

750

Affordable Housing Development Work

640

0

0

0

640

50

0

0

0

50

4,312

2,400

7400

5400

0 19,512

Garage Conversion to Additional
Parking

100

200

200

100

600

Major electrical upgrades to communal
parts

150

150

150

150

600

Provision of Parking Bays to implement
Parking Enforcement

150

150

150

150

600

External Wall Insulation
Better Homes Total

HOME LOSS DISTURBANCE PAYMENTS
Greenleas

GRANTS TO MOVE
Other Capital Projects Total

0

9,497

F14

CCTV Upgrades to Housing Stock

69

0

0

0

69

GENERAL LIFT IMPROVEMENTS

439

0

0

0

439

ESTATE LIGHTING

100

100

100

100

900

1,300

50

50

50

50

50

250

150

0

0

0

REPAIRS TO ROADS PATHWAYS
PARKING

70

80

80

80

WATER TANK RENEWAL

50

50

50

50

153

100

100

100

18

0

0

0

18

0

0

0

0

0

175

0

0

0

175

DEFECTIVE ASPHALT ON WALKWAYS
(DALE COURT)

85

0

0

0

85

HRA HOSTELS

20

20

20

20

20

100

Total Planned

1,779

900

900

800

1150

5,529

Hugh Herland House Sprinklers

82

0

0

0

82

GAS APPLIANCES & HEATING SYSTEM
RENEWAL

20

0

0

0

20

Refurbishment of Ex-Warden Flats

246

0

0

0

246

Major Void Works

200

200

200

200

200

1,000

70

70

70

70

70

350

BUILDING ACCESSIBILITY PROGRAMME

419

200

200

200

200

1,219

DISABLED ADAPTATIONS PROGRAMME

200

200

200

200

200

1,000

ESTATE HEALTH & SAFETY PRIORITY
REPAIRS & IMPROVEMENTS
Improvement to safety balustrades at
Kingsnympton Park Estate

FIRE SAFETY WORKS
Flat Entrance Door Renewal
Improvements Cambridge Gardens
Renewal of door entry system at
Cambridge Gardens Estate

STRUCTURAL WORKS REPAIRS/DAMP

150

80

390
200

100

553

F15

ASBESTOS MANAGEMENT & REMOVAL

150

150

150

150

150

750

Total Demand Driven

1,387

820

820

820

820

4,667

Purchase of HRA Properties - Use of
141 receipts

7,004

5,746

0

0

12,750

Conversion of Ernest Rd

235

0

0

0

235

Conversion of Laundry Rooms at
Brockworth

195

0

0

0

195

Haylett Gardens Convert Storage

160

0

0

0

160

Conversion of 2 Springfield Road

120

0

0

0

120

7,714

5,746

0

0

0 13,460

HRA Masterplanning

700

220

0

0

920

Total Estate Regeneration

700

220

0

0

21,074

14,401

9120

7020

1-4-1 Delivering Projects Total

Total Existing HRA Capital Programme

Additions to HRA Capital Programme

BUDGET BUDGET
2017/18 2018/19

0

920

1970 53,585

BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGE
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 T Total

Conversion of 3 bed to 4/5 bed houses

250

400

400

400

1,450

Domestic boiler replacement

650

850

950

950

3,400

Commercial boiler replacement
(sheltered and hostels)

800

800

0

0

1,600

Renewal of Tunstall system to sheltered
blocks

300

0

0

0

300

80

0

0

0

80

Installation of door entry system at
Haylett Gardens

F16

Major electrical upgrades to communal
parts
Total Additional Projects

TOTAL HRA CAPITAL PROGRAMME

300

300

0

150

750

0

2,380

2350

1350

1500

7,580

21,074

16,781

11,470

8,370

3,470 61,165

G1

Report to follow

Appendix G

Adults and Children’s Committee

H1

Appendix H

1 February 2018
Murray House
Director, Adults Services
Call-in deadline: 5pm Thursday 15 February 2018 (ten working days after the meeting)

Purpose
To ask Members to agree that the Council proceed with a resident, family, partner
organisations and public consultation for the closure of Murray House.
Recommendation of the Portfolio Holder for Adults Social Care and Health
To Resolve whether to proceed with consultation on potential closure of Murray House
residential home.
Key Points
A.

Murray House is a Kingston Council owned and run residential care home that can
provide permanent, respite and assessment placements for up to 38 people. The
service specialises in supporting older people living with a range of health and
social care needs, who require varying degrees of personal care and support. It
currently provides care to 7 permanent residents along with 8 short term beds (2 in
respite care and 6 undergoing assessments. The current capacity of the home is
significantly underutilised due to a previous decision to cease any future permanent
placements.

B.

This paper is seeking to confirm that the Council should proceed with a resident,
family, partner organisations and public consultation for the closure of Murray
House. This is in line with a Committee decision taken in 2012 to cease providing
any further long-term residential or nursing care placements at Newent, Hobkirk and
Murray House care Homes. Newent and Hobkirk care Homes have subsequently
been closed.

C.

Attached to the care home the establishment accommodates the ‘Milaap Centre’.
This is an organisation (partly funded through Council commissioning) that supports
mainly older people (particularly, but not exclusively, those from Black and Minority
Ethnic groups) who are residents of Kingston and neighbouring boroughs with the
object of improving their quality of life. This is done by offering a day centre service
three days per week: providing activities, opportunities for social interaction, days
out and meals. The organisation also has an objective of promoting equality and
diversity and fostering good relationships between people of diverse backgrounds.

D.

The Murray House building was constructed in the 1970’s and is located on Acre
Road Kingston on a site of approximately 0.36 hectares. The latest CQC inspection
rates Murray House as ‘good’. It is low-rise in nature and has an open car parking
area to the front and the rear together with some landscaped areas. In addition to
the residential accommodation, the building contains communal facilities including a
day room, kitchen, accessible toilets and office accommodation.

E.

Murray House does not provide the type of accommodation that is expected of a
modern care environment and would not meet current Care Quality Commission
(CQC) standards. For example, the square footage per room is not adequate and

H2
there are no ensuite facilities. The building is 40 years old and expensive to
maintain. A review of the Murray House site has been undertaken which has
identified that it would be cost prohibitive to transform the site into a home that
meets CQC standards. The home currently cannot provide services to people with
dementia as it is not registered to do so.

F.

The Council is currently looking at proposed alternative uses for the site.

G.

The Committee is invited to note that of the 7 remaining permanent residents, 4
were transferred to Murray House when Newent House was closed.

H.

Should the Committee decide to proceed with the consultation, the following
question is recommended: ’The Council is proposing to close Murray House and
commission future residential care from the market. What are your views on this
proposal?’

Context
1.

The origin of this project dates back to 2011 and the ‘Kingston at Home’
programme. ‘Kingston at Home’ identified that people wanted appropriate
services that would help them to remain in their own homes for a long as
possible. It was also identified that going forward, council provision needed to
focus on dementia care, particularly those people with behaviours that challenge,
while noting there is plentiful supply of residential and nursing care provided by
the market for people with physical health needs.

2.

This resulted in a Committee decision to stop placing permanent residents into
Kingston owned and operated ‘resource centers’ as they were then known (i.e.
Newent, Hobkirk and Murray Care Homes).

3.

To date we have closed both Newent and Hobkirk House. During these closures
Members and officers have been sensitive to the needs of each resident when
sourcing alternative accommodation.

4.

Officers will undertake the same should a decision be taken to consult on the
closure of Murray House. This would include for example, identifying a
nominated social worker, manager and key worker for each resident, providing
an offer of one-to-one meetings with RBK officers and Members, fully
understanding the needs of each resident and working closely with them and
their families to identify suitable alternative accommodation and transfer
arrangements. It would be undertaken with dignity and respect.

5.

Residential and nursing home care for people with dementia and those with
behaviours that challenge cannot be provided at Murray House. It is not
financially viable to convert Murray House into a home that is suitable for people
with advanced dementia and/or challenging behaviour.

6.

This Committee has agreed to the building of a new nursing dementia care home
(which is to include provision for people with challenging behaviour).

7.

The Council has a statutory responsibility to assure an adequate supply of good
quality care services to meet the support needs of residents of the borough.
Demand and supply (market capacity) figures are reviewed annually and demand
and cost projections are used to inform commissioning policy and practice.

8.

The Council funds approximately 150 new permanent placements for older
people in nursing and residential care each year, and a similar number of short
term (3-8 weeks) placements.

9.

H3
These numbers have remained relatively stable over the past three years despite
an increase in the number of older people resident in the borough. This may be
explained by:
i. a greater focus on care at home services and improvement in these services
ii. more rigorous social care assessments.
iii. economic improvements meaning fewer people are eligible for public funded
care.

10.

While overall numbers have remained stable, the people entering bed-based
care are older than they used to be, and have higher support needs at the time of
entry - this pattern is expected to continue as people are supported to maximise
their independence at home, delaying their entry into bed-based care. The
average age of older people entering permanent residential or nursing care is
now 86.5 and the incidence of dementia and challenging behaviour has
increased with nearly 60% of people entering bed-based care having a diagnosis
of dementia or a related condition.

11.

Over the medium term it is likely that we will see an increase in the number of
older people requiring nursing and residential care at the end of their lives. The
majority of these people will have dementia and/or challenging behaviour.

12.

The cost to the Council of standard residential care for older people has
remained relatively stable over the last three years and commissioners report no
general problems in finding standard placements in private homes within 25
miles of the borough.

13.

However, the average cost of nursing care has risen by approximately 28% since
2014-15 with specific problems reported in finding affordable placements for
people with dementia nursing needs and/or challenging behaviour.

14.

In line with this analysis, the Council's intent is to continue to work with good
quality private sector providers to meet the need for general residential
placements and focus commissioning action on the development of a network of
provision for higher acuity needs with a specific focus on dementia nursing and
challenging behaviour including development of a Council owned home for
dementia nursing services in the Borough.

Consultation and Timescale
15.

If the decision is to progress with a resident, family, partner organisations and
public consultation, the Committee’s attention is drawn to the timescale which
would commence on 16 February, run for 6 weeks and close on 30 March.

16.

Discussions have been initiated with the Milaap Centre about finding suitable
alternative accommodation, with appropriate support to be provided by Council
Officers. The activities delivered by the Milaap Centre will continue from an
alternative location.

Proposal and Options
17.

Option 1 - do nothing (do not consult on closing Murray House) - in this scenario
the number of permanent residents is likely to decrease over time and with no
further permanent admissions, Murray House is likely to become empty at some
point in the future. It is difficult to estimate a timeframe however there will be
substantial ongoing running costs and potential difficulties in sustaining the
service operationally.

18.

H4
Option 2 - in this scenario we obtain a decision to consult on closure with current
residents, their families, carers, staff and members of the public. The process will
involve:
●
●
●
●

direct consultation with residents of Murray House and their families
discussions with partner organisations including Milaap
opportunities for the public to have their say
formal consultation with staff would follow a committee decision in June

Resource Implications
19.

Option 1 - the net budget for Murray House is £871,000 per annum. The service
has been overspending in recent years. This is due to the decline in resident
income, an inability to scale back costs due to their fixed nature and a duty to
maintain safe staffing levels and be CQC compliant. Also, the Council is having
to procure alternative provision elsewhere at additional cost particularly for
people with dementia. In 2016/17, the average cost of a bed occupied at Murray
House came to £1,065 per week when there were more residents than now; for
the first half of 2017/18, this has risen to £1,869 due to further falling numbers this will inevitably get worse as Murray becomes empty.

20.

Option 2 - the Council would use some of this budget to source alternative
provision for the 7 permanent residents and this option aligns with our previously
agreed strategy to support people to live at home for as long as possible and
focus resources on areas of increasing need and shortage of market supply.
Potentially, a net saving of £500,000 per annum could be achieved.

Legal Implications
21.

There would be a statutory obligation to consult residents, staff and the public on
any potential proposal to close of Murray House.

Risk Assessment
22.

There would be significant ongoing staffing costs to meet CQC standards and
maintain a service to a depleting small number of residents, with a concern that
the service may not be resilient with decreasing staffing levels.

Equalities Impact Assessment
23.

An Equalities Screening Assessment has been undertaken (Annex 1).

Road Network Implications
24.

None in relation to the proposed consultation.

Environmental and Air Quality Implications
25.

None in relation to the proposed consultation.

Background papers (held by Democratic Services tel 020 8547 5023
jean.cousens@kingston.gov.uk :
Reports to and Minutes of the following meetings:
● People Services Committee - 22.11.2011; 13.03.2012; 29.01.2013 & 19.03.2013
● Residents, Health and Care Services Committee - 27.11.2014 & 26.03.2015
Author of report - Jane Bearman, Interim Head of Operations, Adult Social Care,
jane.bearman@kingston.gov.uk telephone: 0208 547 6073

H5

Annex 1

Equalities Screening Assessment
Project

Murray House Closure

1. Function/Service Being Assessed
Residential/nursing care home and day centre.
2. Populations served/affected:
The services provided at Murray House are targetted mainly at older and disabled groups
who satisfy the eligibility criteria in accordance with the Care Act. This will cut the
protected characteristics within equality legislation. Murray House is a Kingston Council
owned and run residential care home that can provide permanent, respite and assessment
placements for up to 38 people. The service specialises in supporting older people living
with a range of health and social care needs, who require varying degrees of personal
care and support. It currently provides care to 7 permanent residents alongside 8 short
term beds (2 in respite care and 6 undergoing assessments). In 2012, the Council made a
decision to cease providing any new long-term residential or nursing care placements at
Murray House, Newent House or Hobkirk House.
Also within Murray House is the ‘Milaap Centre’. This is an organisation (partly funded
through Council commissioning) that supports (mainly) older people (particularly, but not
exclusively, those from Black and Minority Ethnic groups) who are residents of Kingston
and neighbouring boroughs with the object of improving their quality of life. This is done by
offering a day centre service three days per week: providing activities, opportunities for
social interaction, days out and meals. The organisation also has an objective of promoting
equality and diversity and fostering good relationships between people of diverse
backgrounds. The facilities and Murray House are also used by the Kingston Chinese
Association.
3. Is it relevant to the general duties as specified by the Equality Act?
Murray House provides a service that enables the Council to discharge its statutory
obligations in accordance with the Care Act and as a result is therefore relevant to the
general duties of the Equality Act i.e. eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of
opportunity and fostering good relations between all groups.
One of the objectives of the Milaap Centre is to ‘...promote equality and diversity and foster
good relationships between people of diverse backgrounds’. In addition it states that it
‘..supports (mainly) older people (particularly, but not exclusively, those from Black and
Minority Ethnic groups) who are residents of Kingston and neighbouring boroughs with the
object of improving their quality of life.’
Do you monitor your users?
Yes - we have detailed information about the permanent and short term residents at
Murray House. Milaap Centre centre holds information about its service users.

H6
Is there any evidence or reason to believe that some groups could be differently
affected?
The services are delivered in accordance in accordance with the Care Act. From the
information we have at present we are of the opinion that all service users needs will be
taken into account and treated accordingly.
Which equality groups are affected?
The main groups that will be affected will fall within the age, disability and gender
categories. With regarding to Milaap Centre the above groups as well as ethnicity. There
may not be information held on certain categories, e.g. gender reassignment.
4. What is the degree of relevance? (In your view, is the information you have on each
category adequate to make a decision about relevance?)
Yes - in relation to Murray House and the statutory duty we have the relevant information.
Milaap Centre holds information about its service users.
Are there any triggers for this review? (for example is there any public concern that
functions/services are being operated in a discriminatory manner?) If yes please indicate
which:
Yes - this is part of Adult Social Care transformation programme initiated in 2011 regarding
the future of the Council’s four ‘Resource Centres’ (i.e. residential care homes) and the
pressures of reducing budgets for Local Authorities generally.
5. Conclusion (On the basis of the relevance test would you say that there is evidence
that a medium or high detrimental impact is likely?)
In our opinion, depending on the decision of the Committee, there could be a medium
impact in relation to age, disability and gender in relation to Murray House residents. This
same impact could also be felt by users of Milaap Centre but in addition includes ethnicity.
Discussions have been initiated with Milaap Centre about finding suitable alternative
accommodation, with appropriate support to be provided by Council Officers.
Recommend that a full EQIA be taken upon the decision of the Committee. (Should this
Committee agree to proceed with the consultation, a full EQIA will be undertaken and
brought back to this Committee together with the results of the consultation.)

Adults and Children’s Committee

I1

Appendix I

1 February 2018
Determination of Admission Arrangements for 2019/20 for all Community Schools
and for Coordinated Admissions Scheme
Joint Director of Children’s Services
Call-in deadline 5pm Thursday 15 February 2018 (ten working days after the meeting)
Purpose
To fulfil the statutory duty of the Local Authority (LA) to determine admission arrangements
for community schools. This includes the statutory duty to adopt co-ordinated admission
schemes for primary and secondary admissions for all schools within the borough.
Recommendation of the Portfolio Holder for Children’s Social Care and Health
To Resolve that the proposed admissions arrangements for 2019/20 for Community Schools,
as set out in Annexes 1 - 4 of the report, are formally determined.
Key Points
A.

Admission authorities are required to publish the arrangements they will make to
allocate places at schools if they are oversubscribed (i.e. there are more
applications than there are places available). Before determination and publication
they are required to consult with other admission authorities, neighbouring Local
Authorities, Diocesan Boards (for faith schools), relevant parents and the wider
community. Admission authorities are required to consult every seven years unless
the proposed admission arrangements are different from those determined in the
previous year.

B.

There are two key proposed changes to the admission arrangements for
2019/2020. The first is to include priority for children of staff as an admissions
criterion. This proposal has arisen as a result of requests from community schools
to include priority for children of staff. The second is to remove the separate
admissions criteria for entry into Reception and transfer to Year 3 for Alexandra
School. These have been in place during the transition period from infant to junior
for Alexandra School (formerly an infant school) and St Paul’s CofE Primary School,
Kingston Hill (formerly Alexandra’s linked junior School). There are no other
proposed changes to admission arrangements for 2019/20, apart from possible
changes to to Pan London dates within the secondary and primary admissions
schemes.

Context
1.

Following requests from some community schools to include within their
oversubscription criteria a criterion giving priority for children of staff, a survey was
conducted with all Kingston community primary schools during the summer term
2017. The survey asked schools to comment on: whether they were in favour of the
change; the impact on their school of not having this criterion in place; and the
number of places that may be affected as a result of the possible change.

2.

A total of eight out of 17 Kingston community primary schools responded, of which
seven supported and one opposed the change. The results of the survey were

I2
discussed with Kingston’s primary school headteachers and they were in favour of
conducting a formal consultation on the proposal. This consultation would provide
an opportunity for all schools,their governing bodies, and all other stakeholder to
respond formally to the statutory consultation on the proposed admissions
arrangements for 2019/2020.

Consultations
3.

A formal consultation took place, with schools in the borough and stakeholders
mentioned in paragraph A, between 31 October and 15 December 2017. The
arrangements under consultation were the admissions arrangements for community
schools ( Annex 1); the secondary, primary and in year schemes, which are
attached as Annexes 2-4 of this report.

4.

A total of nineteen responses were received to the consultation, of which 18 were in
favour of the proposed change to prioritise children of staff and one opposed the
change.

Timescale
5.

All admissions authorities must determine admission arrangements by 28 February
each year and publish these on their website by 15 March in the determination year.

Resource Implications
6.

None arising from the specific recommendation of the report.

Legal Implications and Equalities Impact Assessment
7.

School admission authorities are required by section 88C of the School Standards
and Framework Act 1998 and the School Admissions (Admission Arrangements
and Co-ordination of Admission Arrangements) (England) Regulations 2012 to
consult as necessary and to determine admission arrangements for their schools by
28 February each year. The determined arrangements must be published by 15
March. The proposed admissions criteria comply with legislation and the School
Admissions Code. Paragraphs 1.39 of the Code permits admission authorities to
give priority in their oversubscription criteria to children of staff in either or both of
the following circumstances: a) where the member of staff has been employed at
the school for two or more years at the time at which the application for admission
to the school is made, and/or b) the member of staff is recruited to fill a vacant post
for which there is a demonstrable skill shortage and these criteria are reflected in
the proposed admissions criteria.The proposals contained in this report are fully
compliant with all relevant legislation and the statutory requirements of the School
Admissions Code which places a duty on LAs to ensure fair access to educational
opportunity and prohibits all admission authorities from disadvantaging children
from any particular social or racial group or those with disabilities or special
educational needs.

8.

Under relevant legislation and the School Admissions Code admission authorities
are required to ensure fair access to educational opportunity and prohibits all
admission authorities from disadvantaging children from any particular social or
racial group or those with disabilities or special educational needs.To enable
parents to make informed decisions when applying for school places, Kingston’s
published admissions arrangements provide parents with clear information about
the admissions process, entry criteria and admission arrangements.

I3

9.

The proposals enable the Council to promote equality of opportunity for all children
by having objective criteria and procedures that are fair for all groups of children
including those with special educational needs and disabilities and children who are,
or have been, in care.

Risk Assessment
10.

In accordance with section 14 of the Education Act 1996, the Council has a
statutory duty to ensure that there are sufficient school places for every school aged
resident requiring a school place. In its role as the commissioner for school places,
the Council works collaboratively with maintained schools, academies and free
schools within Kingston and with neighbouring Councils to plan for and meet the
demand for school places and agree admission arrangements which will enable as
many children as possible to attend schools within their immediate community.

Road Network Implications
11.

There are no network implications arising directly from the proposals under
consideration in this report
.

Environmental and Air Quality Implications
There are no environmental implications arising directly from the proposals
under consideration in this report.

12.

Background papers -  held by the author of the report - Hatija Bhatia,
Head of Admissions and Fair Access (Kingston and Richmond), Achieving for Children,
hatija.bhatia@achievingforchildren.org.uk, tel 020 8547 5284
●
●

School Admissions Code
Admissions arrangements 2018/19


Annexes
Annex 1
Annex 2 
Annex 3
Annex 4

Admissions arrangements for Community secondary and primary schools
Scheme for Coordinated Secondary School Admissions In September
2019
Scheme for Coordinated Primary School Admissions In September 2019
Scheme for In-Year Admissions for September 2019/2020

I4

Annex 1
Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
PROPOSED SCHOOL ADMISSION ARRANGEMENTS
FOR THE SCHOOL YEAR 2019/20
Introduction
This document explains the proposed school admission arrangements for the school year
2019/2020.
A. Admission criteria for community schools in Kingston (pp1–7)
B. Admission numbers for community schools (p8)
C. Scheme for co-ordinated secondary admissions (p9 and Annex 2)
D. Scheme for co-ordinated primary admissions (p9 and Annex 3)
E. In-Year Admissions Scheme for all maintained schools in Kingston (p9 and Annex
4)
A.

Admissions criteria for community schools
1.

The Local Authority is proposing to add a criterion giving priority to children of
staff as criterion iv) described below.

Proposed admissions criteria for Community Secondary Schools
2.

The proposed oversubscription criteria for September 2019 for the
community secondary school, Chessington Community College, is as follows:

Where more applications are received than there are places available, places will be
offered in the following order of priority:
i.

**Places will be offered firstly to Looked After Children i.e. children who
are looked after by a public authority and are in public care, and
previously looked after children who were adopted, or subject to a
residence order, or special guardianship order, immediately following
having been looked after.
Applications made under this criterion must be accompanied by details
of circumstance and professionally supported evidence (e.g. from a
social worker);

ii.

places will be offered next to children who have a brother or sister,
including an adopted, foster, half- or step- brother or sister, living at the
same address and attending the same school at the time of admission;

iii.

places will then be offered in cases of exceptional family, social or
medical need (which must be described on the application form and
verified by professionally supported evidence) which makes the school
concerned the most suitable one for the individual child;

I5

iv.

places will then be offered to children of members of staff who have
been employed at the school for two or more years at the time of
application and will continue to be employed at the school at the point of
admission or the member of staff is recruited to fill a vacant post for
which there is a demonstrable skill shortage;

v.

the remaining places will be offered to children who live nearest to the
school, as measured by a straight line to the nearest school gate. All
distances will be measured using the School Admissions computerised
Geographical Information System.

If there are more applicants within each criterion, distance from home to school will be
used as a tie-breaker and will be measured using the School Admissions computerised
geographical information system.
For applicants from the same block of flats or who live the same distance from the
school, random selection by the drawing of lots is used as a final tie-breaker.
If a parent applies for entry into the same year group for more than one child and there
is only one place available, random selection by the drawing of lots is used as a final
tie-breaker to decide which child should have the place. The remaining brothers or
sisters will be added to the waiting list in accordance with criterion (ii).
Proposed admissions criteria for community infant and primary Schools
3.

The proposed oversubscription criteria for community infant and primary
schools are as follows:

Where more applications are received than there are places available, places will be
offered in the following order of priority:
i.

**Places will be offered firstly to Looked After Children i.e. children who
are looked after by a public authority and are in public care, and
previously looked after children who were adopted, or subject to a
residence order, or special guardianship order, immediately following
having been looked after.
Applications made under this criterion must be accompanied by details
of circumstance and professionally supported evidence (e.g. from a
social worker);

ii.

places will be offered next to children who have a brother or sister,
including an adopted, foster, half- or step- brother or sister, living at the
same address and attending Reception to Year 6 at the same school (or
the paired junior school) at the time of admission;

iii.

places will then be offered in cases of exceptional family, social, or
medical need (which must be described on the application form and
verified by professionally supported evidence) which makes the school
concerned the most suitable one for the individual child;
2

I6

iv.

places will then be offered to children of members of staff who have
been employed at the school for two or more years at the time of
application and will continue to be employed at the school at the point of
admission or the member of staff is recruited to fill a vacant post for
which there is a demonstrable skill shortage;

v.

the remaining places will be offered to children who live nearest to the
school, as measured by a straight line to the nearest school gate. All
distances will be measured using the School Admissions computerised
Geographical Information System. For Ellingham Primary School (in
Chessington) only, a child living in the Malden Rushett area will have
priority over children who live nearer to the school but outside that area.

If there are more applicants within each criterion, distance from home to school will be
used as a tie-breaker and will be measured using the School Admissions computerised
geographical information system.
For applicants from the same block of flats or who live the same distance from the
school, random selection by the drawing of lots is used as a final tie-breaker.
If a parent applies for entry into the same year group for more than one child and there
is only one place available, random selection by the drawing of lots is used as a final
tie-breaker to decide which child should have the place. The remaining brothers or
sisters will be added to the waiting list in accordance with criterion (ii).
Proposed admissions criteria for community junior schools
4.

The proposed oversubscription criteria for community junior schools are as
follows:

Where more applications are received than there are places available, places will be
offered in the following order of priority:
i.

**Places will be offered firstly to Looked After Children i.e. children who
are looked after by a public authority and are in public care, and
previously looked after children who were adopted, or subject to a
residence order, or special guardianship order, immediately following
having been looked after.
Applications made under this criterion must be accompanied by details
of circumstance and professionally supported evidence (e.g. from a
social worker);

ii.

places will be offered secondly to children attending the “paired”
community infant school*;

iii.

places will be offered next to children who have a brother or sister,
including an adopted, foster, half- or step- brother or sister, living at the
same address and attending Reception to Year 6 at the same school (or
the paired infant school) at the time of admission;
3

I7

iv.

places will then be offered in cases of exceptional family, social or
medical need (which must be described on the application form and
verified by professionally supported evidence) which makes the school
concerned the most suitable one for the individual child;

v.

places will then be offered to children of members of staff who have
been employed at the school for two or more years at the time of
application and will continue to be employed at the school at the point of
admission or the member of staff is recruited to fill a vacant post for
which there is a demonstrable skill shortage;

vi.

the remaining places will be offered to children who live nearest to the
school, as measured by a straight line to the nearest school gate. All
distances will be measured using the School Admissions computerised
Geographical Information System.
* criterion ii) will only apply until 31 August 2019, when the applicant will
have left the paired infant school

If there are more applicants within each criterion, distance from home to school will be
used as a tie-breaker and will be measured using the School Admissions computerised
geographical information system.
For applicants from the same block of flats or who live the same distance from the
school, random selection by the drawing of lots is used as a final tie-breaker.
If a parent applies for entry into the same year group for more than one child and there
is only one place available, random selection by the drawing of lots is used as a final
tie-breaker to decide which child should have the place. The remaining brothers or
sisters will be added to the waiting list in accordance with criterion (ii).
Proposed admissions criteria for community nursery schools
5.

The proposed oversubscription criteria for community nursery schools are:

Where more applications are received than there are places available, places
will be offered in the following order of priority:
i.

**Places will be offered firstly to Looked After Children i.e. children who
are looked after by a public authority and are in public care, and
previously looked after children who were adopted, or subject to a
residence order, or special guardianship order, immediately following
having been looked after.
Applications made under this criterion must be accompanied by details
of circumstance and professionally supported evidence (e.g. from a
social worker);

4

I8

ii.

places will be offered next to children who have a brother or sister,
including an adopted, foster, half- or step- brother or sister, living at the
same address and attending Reception to Year 6 at the same school (or
the paired junior school) at the time of admission;

iii.

places will then be offered in cases of exceptional family, social, or
medical need (which must be described on the application form and
verified by professionally supported evidence) which makes the school
concerned the most suitable one for the individual child;

iv.

places will then be offered to children of members of staff who have
been employed at the school for two or more years at the time of
application and will continue to be employed at the school at the point of
admission or the member of staff is recruited to fill a vacant post for
which there is a demonstrable skill shortage;

v.

the remaining places will be offered to children who live nearest to the
school, as measured by a straight line to the nearest school gate. All
distances will be measured using the School Admissions computerised
Geographical Information System. For Ellingham Primary School (in
Chessington) only, a child living in the Malden Rushett area will have
priority over children who live nearer to the school but outside that area.

If there are more applicants within each criterion, distance from home to school will be
used as a tie-breaker and will be measures using the School Admissions computerised
geographical information system.
For applicants from the same block of flats or who live the same distance from the
school, random selection by the drawing of lots is used as a final tie-breaker.
If a parent applies for entry into the same year group for more than one child and there
is only one place available, random selection by the drawing of lots is used as a final
tie-breaker to decide which child should have the place. The remaining brothers or
sisters will be added to the waiting list in accordance with criterion (ii).
**Under community school admissions criteria for secondary, primary, junior and
nursery admissions the definition of Looked After Children and previously looked
after children is as follows:
Looked After Children
Children who are (a) in the care of a local authority, or (b) being provided with
accommodation by a local authority in the exercise of their social services functions in
accordance with section 22 of the Children Act 1989, at the time an application for a
school is made;;
Previously Looked After Children
Children who were previously looked after, but ceased to be so because they were
adopted (under the Adoption Act 1976 or Adoption and Children’s Act 2002), or became
subject to a child arrangements order or special guardianship order.
5

I9

Measuring home to school distance
6.

The Council has a standard method of measuring home to school distance in
a straight line using the School Admissions computerised Geographical
Information System using data supplied by Ordnance Survey (OS).

The starting point is a grid reference point, which is supplied by Ordnance Survey.
Residents of every floor level in a particular block of flats are given an identical start
point, regardless of the distance to ground floor level.
The end point is measured to the nearest school gate where the school
has more than one school gate used for measuring home to school distances.
Use of a final tie breaker
7.

For applicants from the same block of flats, or who live the same distance
from the school, random selection by the drawing of lots is used as a final
tie-breaker. The distance from home to school is used as a ‘tie-breaker’ if
there are more applications than places available under any higher criteria.

8.

If a parent applies for entry into the same year group for more than one child
and there is only one place available, random selection by the drawing of lots
is used as a final tie-breaker to decide which child should have the place. The
names of the remaining brothers or sisters will be added to the waiting list in
accordance with criterion (ii).

Waiting lists for community schools
9.

The child’s name will automatically be put on the waiting list, in criteria order,
of any school which is a higher preference to the school he/she has been
offered.

10. A parent/carer may ask for their child’s name to be added to the waiting list of
a lower preference school to the one the child has been offered, or on one
that they did not originally name as a preference. His/her name will be added
to the waiting list in criteria order.
11. The names of late applicants will be added to waiting lists in criteria order
regardless of the date the application was received.
12. Waiting lists for community schools will be kept open throughout the
academic year until the end of the summer term in July 2020. After this date,
waiting lists will be disbanded and parents who would like their child’s name
to remain on any waiting list will need to request this in writing.
Applying for entry into the reception class of a primary or infant school
13. For children currently attending a school nursery, parents/carers must
complete an application form for entry into the Reception class even if the
child attends the nursery class at the same school. Priority is not given to
6

I10

children who attend the nursery class in the same school. This is to ensure
that parents who place their children in other kinds of nursery, or do not use a
nursery, are treated fairly when applying for a school place for their child.
Deferred entry or part-time attendance in Reception year
14. Parents can defer their child’s entry to school until later in the school year or
to attend part-time, but only until the child reaches compulsory school age in
that school year i.e. the latest their child can start school is at the beginning of
the summer term 2020. Once a place has been offered, parents can confirm
the arrangements with the Headteacher of the school.
Admission outside of the child’s normal age group
15. Parents seeking admission to an age group below their child’s actual age
should submit their request with their application by the closing date of 15
January 2019. They will also need to submit a separate written request and
may provide supporting documentation should they wish to do so.
16. Each request will be carefully considered and a decision will be made on the
individual merits of each case. The decision will take into account parents’
views, information about their child’s academic, social and emotional
development, their medical history and the views of a medical professional, if
applicable. Consideration will be given to whether they may naturally have
fallen into a lower age group if it were not for being born prematurely and
whether they have previously been educated outside of their normal age
group. Views of senior school staff, the manager of their current early years
setting and other professionals will also be taken into account.
17. For summer born children, if it is agreed that they can be educated in a
younger year group, parents will need to re-apply in the following year for
entry into Reception in September 2020.

Children with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities
18. If a child is undergoing an assessment of special educational needs and a
parent/carer does not know what the outcome will be by the closing date of
application, they should apply for a school place using the common
application form. If a particular school is later named in the child’s Education
and Health Care Plan (EHCP), formerly known as a Statement of Special
Educational Needs, a place will be provided automatically for the child at that
school.
Children with an Education, Health and Care Plan (EHCP)
19. If a child has an EHCP (or Statement), he/she will be offered a place at the
school named in their EHCP, in accordance with the Education Act 1996 and
the Special Educational Needs Code of Practice.
7

I11

B.

ADMISSIONS NUMBERS FOR SEPTEMBER 2019/2020

Proposed Secondary School Admission Numbers for September 2019/2020
20. There are no changes to the admission number for Chessington Community
College for September 2019. This number is as follows:
School
Chessington Community College

Proposed Admission No
150

Proposed Primary School Admission Numbers for September 2019/2020
21. There are no changes to admission numbers for community primary, junior
and infant schools for September 2019. The numbers are as follows:
School
Alexandra
Burlington Infant
Burlington Junior
Coombe Hill Infant
Coombe Hill Junior
Ellingham Primary
Fern Hill Primary
Grand Avenue Primary
Green Lane Primary
King Athelstan Primary
King’s Oak Primary
Lovelace Primary
Malden Manor Primary
Maple Infant
Robin Hood Primary
Tolworth Infant
Tolworth Junior

C.

Proposed Admission No
60
120
120
90
90
60
90
90
60
60
90
90
60
90
30
90
90

Scheme for co-ordinated secondary admissions

Co-ordinated Secondary School Admission Arrangements
22. The co-ordinated scheme for secondary admissions for September 2019 is
attached as Annex 2 and does not differ significantly from the LA’s scheme
for 2018 admissions except in the dates of the commonly agreed timetable.

8

I12

D.

Scheme for co-ordinated primary admissions

Co-ordinated Primary School Admission Arrangements
23. The co-ordinated scheme for primary admissions for September 2019 is
attached as Annex 3 and does not differ significantly from the LA’s scheme
for 2018 admissions except in the dates of the commonly agreed timetable.

E.

In-Year Admissions Scheme for all maintained schools in Kingston

In-Year Admissions for 2019-2020 for all maintained schools
24. The proposed scheme which is attached as Annex 4 is based on the
principles of maintaining key benefits of the existing scheme and meeting the
requirements of the School Admissions Code.
25. It is recognised by Kingston schools and the LA that the scheme may need to
be amended as a result of ongoing review and work between Las and schools
to agree procedures that promote fair access and improve outcomes for pupil
admissions to schools.

9

I13

Annex 2
THE ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES
SCHEME FOR CO-ORDINATED SECONDARY SCHOOL ADMISSIONS
IN SEPTEMBER 2019
The Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames Local Authority (LA) will be administering
admissions to secondary schools in accordance with the Pan London Co-ordinated
Admissions scheme. This scheme has been adopted by all London boroughs and adjacent
LAs including Surrey County Council, that have agreed to use a common scheme that
incorporates a common timetable and application forms which have common elements. All
London LAs allow parents to nominate up to six schools in preference order. It is hoped
that the commonality of the schemes adopted by all participating authorities will help
simplify the application procedure and processing, and help to achieve some equity of
treatment for applicants to secondary schools across the London Region.
Glossary of terms in the scheme
“the Application Year”

the academic year in which the parent makes an
application i.e. in relation to the academic year of entry,
the year preceding it
“the Board”
the Pan London Admissions Executive Board, which is
responsible for the Scheme
“the Business User
the document issued annually to participating LAs
Guide (BUG)”
setting out the operational procedures of the Scheme
“the Common Application this is the form that each LA must have under the
Form”
Regulations for parents to use to make their
applications, set out in rank order
“the London E-Admissions the common online application system used by the 33
Portal”
London LAs and Surrey County Council
“the Equal Preference
the model whereby all preferences listed by parents on
System”
the Common Application Form are considered under
the over-subscription criteria for each school without
reference to parental rankings. Where a pupil is
offered a place at more than one school within an LA,
the rankings are used to determine the single offer by
selecting the one ranked highest of those which can
offer a place
“the Home LA”
the LA in which the applicant/parent/carer is resident
“the Local Admission
the IT module for administering admissions in each LA
System (LAS)”
and for determining the highest offer both within and
between participating LAs
“the Maintaining LA”
the LA which maintains a school to which an
applicant/parent/carer has applied
“the Notification Letter”
the agreed form of letter sent to applicants on the
Prescribed Day which communicates decisions
granting or refusing admission to a secondary school,
which is attached as Schedule 2
“the Prescribed Day”
1st March in the year following the relevant
the day on which
determination year except that, in any year which that
outcome letters are
day is not a working day, the prescribed day shall be
posted to parents/carers. the next working day

I14

“the Pan-London Register
(PLR)”
“the Pan-London
Timetable”
“the Qualifying Scheme”

the database which will transmit application and offer
data between each LA’s local admission system
the framework for processing of application data
the scheme which each LA is required to formulate in
accordance with the School Admissions (Coordination
of Admission Arrangements) Regulations 2008 for
coordinating arrangements for the admission of pupils
to maintained secondary schools and academies

Applications
1. Applications from Kingston’s residents will be made on Kingston’s Common
Application Form, which will be available in paper form and online. This will
include all the fields and information specified in Schedule 2 (attached) to this LA
Scheme. These will be supplemented by any additional fields and information
deemed necessary by this LA.
2. This LA will advise home LAs of their resident pupils on the roll of this LA’s
primary schools and whose parents are eligible to make application in the
forthcoming application year.
3. This LA will take reasonable steps to ensure that every parent who has a child in
the last year of primary education within a state funded school, and is a resident
in the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames (RBK), has access to the online
brochure “Admission to Kingston’s Secondary Schools” and supplementary
information forms for RBK schools. The online brochure and supplementary
information forms will also be available to parents who are non-residents of this
LA and will include information on how they can access their Home LA’s online
application process or paper application if they are unable to apply online.
4. Applicants will be able to express a preference for up to six maintained
secondary schools and academies within and/or outside the Home LA (including
any City Technical Colleges that have agreed to participate in their LA’s
Qualifying Scheme).
5. The admission authorities within this LA will not use supplementary information
forms except where the information is required to apply the published
over-subscription criteria and the information available through the Common
Application Form is not sufficient for consideration of the application against a
school’s published admissions criteria. The LA will seek to ensure admission
authorities within its area only collect information that is required by the published
admissions criteria, in accordance with the School Admissions Code.
6. Where supplementary information forms are used, information on how to access
the forms will be made available on the RBK website. Parents will be advised in
the Secondary Schools brochure which schools require these forms to be
completed, where to obtain the forms and to return the supplementary
11

I15

information forms direct to the school by the closing date. The supplementary
information forms must also advise parents that they must also complete their
Home LA’s Common Application Form, in accordance with the School
Admissions Code.
7. In accordance with paragraph 2.3 of the School Admissions Code, the order of
preference given on the Common Application Form will not be revealed except
where a parent resident in this LA expresses a preference for schools in the area
of another LA, the order of preference for that LA’s schools will be given to that
LA so that it can determine the highest ranked preference in cases where a child
is eligible for a place at more than one school in that LA’s area.
8. Where a school receives a supplementary information form it will not be regarded
as a valid application unless the parent has completed their home LA’s Common
Application Form and the school is nominated on it. This is in accordance with
paragraph 2.3 of the School Admissions Code.
9. Where a Common Application Form has been completed, but not a
supplementary information form, the preference is still valid and will be
considered. However, parents will be advised in the “Admission to Kingston’s
Secondary Schools” brochure that not submitting a completed supplementary
information form to schools which require supplementary information to apply
their admissions criteria, may reduce their child’s chance of being offered a place
because the school’s criteria cannot be fully applied.
10. Kingston LA undertakes to carry out the address verification process set out in its
secondary school Admission brochure and in the Business User Guide and in
LIAAG’s Address Verification Register. This will, in all cases, include validation
of resident applicants in accordance with described processes, including this LA’s
primary school data and the further investigation of any discrepancy. Where this
LA is not satisfied with the validity of an applicant whose preference has been
sent to a maintaining LA, it will advise the maintaining LA no later than 12
December 2018.
11. Kingston LA will confirm the status of any resident child for whom it receives a
Common Application Form stating that he/she is a “Looked After Child” or
previously looked after child and will provide any requested evidence to the
maintaining LA in respect of a preference for a school in its area by 13
November 2018.
12. Kingston LA will advise a maintaining LA of the reason for any preference for a
school in its area, in respect of a resident child born outside of the correct age
range for the cohort, and forward any supporting documentation to the
maintaining LA by 13 November 2018.
13. This LA will share the details of each application with own admission authority
schools within RBK to enable schools to apply their admissions criteria.

12

I16

14. Schools which receive Common Application Forms in error must inform the LA
and send the forms to the LA as soon as possible. If the LA receives
supplementary information forms in error, it must send them to the schools as
soon as possible.
Processing
15. Applicants resident within Kingston LA must return the Common Application
Form, which will be available and able to be submitted online, to this LA by 31
October 2018. However this LA will publish information which encourages
applicants to submit their applications by 19 October 2018 (i.e. Friday before
half term), to allow sufficient time to process and check all applications before
the mandatory date when data must be sent to the PLR.
16. Supplementary information forms, where they apply, must be returned to the
school by the closing date, which must be specified on the supplementary
information form.
17. Application data relating to all preferences to schools in participating LAs, which
have been expressed within the terms of this LA’s scheme, will be up-loaded to
the PLR by 13 November 2018. Supplementary information forms provided with
the Common Application Form will be sent to the maintaining LA by the same
date.
18. In consultation with the admission authorities within this LA’s area and within the
framework of the Pan-London timetable, the timetable attached has been drawn
up for the processing of application data and the application of admissions
criteria. This may be subject to alteration prior to the implementation of this
scheme to reflect any required change under Pan London arrangements.
19. Between 15 November and 19 November 2018, this LA will check the
application data received via the PLR and prepare details of applicants to be sent
to own admission authority schools by 22 November 2018.
20. This LA will participate in the data checking exercise to be scheduled between 13
December 2018 and 2 January 2019 in the Pan London timetable.
21. All preferences for schools within this LA will be considered and ranked by the
relevant admission authorities between 22 November 2018 and 9 January 2019
for entry in September 2019.
22. By 10 January 2019, all admission authorities within RBK will have provided a
list of applicants in criteria order to this LA, and this LA will, for each applicant
who has qualified for more than one potential offer, use the highest ranked
preference to decide which single potential offer to make. (this is the “Equal
Preference System”).

13

I17

Late Applications
23. This LA will only accept late applications and treat them as equivalent to
applications received by the closing date if the parent(s) move into The Royal
Borough of Kingston upon Thames after the closing date and can provide
documentary evidence confirming this or if there are exceptional reasons why the
application is late. Each late application will be considered separately and on its
own merits. Any such applications will need to be received by 7 December 2018,
to enable them to be considered alongside applications received earlier.
24. Where such applications contain preferences for schools in other LAs, this LA will
forward the details to maintaining LAs via the PLR as they are received. This LA
will accept late applications which are considered to be on time within the terms
of the home LA’s scheme.
25. Where a parent moves from one participating Home LA to another after
submitting an on-time application under the terms of the former Home LA’s
scheme, the new Home LA will accept the applications as on time up to 7
December 2018, on the basis that an on-time application already exists within
the Pan London System.
26. Where a parent moves within the borough and wishes to change their
preferences to include schools closer to their new home address, any such
applications will need to be received by 7 December 2018, to enable them to be
considered alongside applications received earlier.
27. The latest date for the upload of late applications which are considered to be
on-time within the terms of the home LA’s scheme to the PLR is 12
December 2018.
28. Any late applications received after 7 December 2018 but before 1 March 2018
will not be considered in the initial allocation round and will be considered after all
the on-time applications are processed.
Exchange of Offers Data via PLR
29. This LA will carry out all reasonable checks to ensure that pupil rankings are
correctly held in its LAS before uploading data to the PLR.
30. This LA will upload the highest potential offer (ALT File) available to an applicant
for a maintained school in this LA to the PLR by 1 February 2019. The PLR will
transmit the highest potential offer made by the maintaining LA to the Home LA.
31. The local admissions system (LAS) of this LA, as the home LA for Kingston
parents, will eliminate all but the highest ranked offer where an applicant has
more than one potential offer across the maintaining LAs for whose school(s)
he/she has applied (provided that those LAs each submit this information within
the deadline to the PLR). This will involve exchanges of preference outcomes
14

I18

between the LAS and the PLR (in accordance with the iterative timetable
published in the BUG) which will continue until a steady state is achieved (which
the PLR will indicate), or until 14 February 2019 if this is sooner.
32. Notwithstanding paragraph 31, if an error is identified within the allocation of
places at one of this LA’s schools/academies, this LA will attempt to manually
resolve the allocation to correct the error. Where this impacts on another LA
(either as a home or maintaining LA), this LA will liaise with that LA to attempt to
resolve the correct offer and any multiple offers which might occur. However, if
another LA is unable to resolve a multiple offer, or if the impact is too far
reaching, this LA will accept that the applicant(s) affected might receive a multiple
offer.
33. This LA will participate in the offer data checking exercise scheduled between 15
and 22 February 2019 in the Pan London timetable.
34. This LA will send a file to the E-Admissions portal with outcomes for all residents
who have applied online no later than 25 February 2019.
National Offer Day – 1 March 2019
35. On 1 March 2019, this LA will send out by first class post, notification of the
outcome to resident applicants. This LA will inform all resident applicants of their
highest offer of a school place and where relevant, the reasons why higher
preferences were not offered, whether these were for schools in the home LA or
in other participating LAs.
36. Kingston parents whose children do not qualify for a place at any of the schools
they apply for (in any LA) will be offered an alternative school on the national
offer day (1 March) if at all possible. This school will be the nearest non-selective
school to the home address with places remaining for boys and/or girls (as
applicable). Allocation will be made in accordance with the school’s admission
criteria, or the home to school distance criterion. These parents will also be
offered the opportunity to make late applications to schools to which they did not
originally apply.
37. Details of the pupils to be offered will be made available to each Kingston primary
and secondary school on 1 March 2019.
38. All initial and subsequent offers will be made by the Home LA throughout
the co-ordinated admissions process and not by schools.
39. This LA’s outcome letter will include the information set out in Schedule 2.
40. This LA will provide primary schools with a final destination data of its resident
applicants before the end of the summer term 2019.

15

I19

Post-offer Date Arrangements
41. Parents must accept or decline the offer of a place by 15 March 2019, or within
two weeks of any subsequent offer. If they do not respond by this date, the LA
will make every reasonable effort to contact the parent to find out whether or not
they wish to accept or decline the place. Only where the parent fails to respond
and the LA can demonstrate that every reasonable effort has been made to
contact the parent, will the place be withdrawn.
42. Where an applicant resident accepts or declines a place in a school maintained
by another LA by 15 March 2019, this LA will forward the information to the
maintaining LA by 22 March 2019. Where such
information is received after 15 March 2019, this LA will pass it to the maintaining
LA as and when it is received.
43. Where a place becomes available in an oversubscribed maintained school
or academy in this LA’s area, it will be offered by the Home LA from the
waiting list ordered in accordance with paragraph 2.14 of the School
Admissions Code.
44. When acting as a maintaining LA, this LA will inform the home LA, where
different, of an offer for a maintained school or Academy in this LA’s area which
can be made to an applicant resident in the home LA’s area, in order that the
home LA can offer the place.
45. Where a waiting list is maintained by an admission authority of a maintained
school or academy in this LA’s area, the admission authority will inform this LA of
a potential offer, in order that the offer may be made by the applicant’s home LA.
46. When acting as a maintaining LA, this LA and the admission authorities within it
will not inform an applicant resident in another LA that a place can be offered.
47. When acting as a home LA, this LA will offer a place at a maintained school or
Academy in the area of another LA to an applicant resident in its area, provided
that the school is ranked higher on the Common Application Form than any
school already offered.
48. When acting as a home LA, when this LA is informed by a maintaining LA of an
offer which can be made to an applicant resident in this LA’s area which is
ranked lower on the Common Application Form than any school already offered,
it will inform the maintaining LA that the offer will not be made.
49. When acting as a home LA, when this LA has agreed to a change of preference
order for good reason, it will inform any maintaining LA affected by the change. In
such cases, paragraphs 43 and 44 shall apply to the revised order of
preferences.
50. When acting as a maintaining LA, this LA will inform the home LA, where
different, of any change to an applicant's offer status as soon as it occurs.
16

I20

51. When acting as a maintaining LA, this LA will accept new applications (including
additional preferences) from home LAs for maintained schools and academies in
its area.
Waiting List Arrangements
52. The letter notifying parents of the outcome of their application will also inform
them that their child’s name will be automatically placed on the waiting list for
higher preference schools in Kingston than the one offered.
53. Parents with a higher preference offer can request that their child’s name is
added to waiting lists for lower preference schools and his/her name will be
added in criteria order.
54. Waiting lists for community schools will be held in criteria order (regardless of
when an application is received) until the end of the academic year in July 2020.
After this date, community school waiting lists will be disbanded and parents will
have to request in writing to have their child’s name added to a waiting list for any
community school.
55. For own admission authority schools and academies, waiting lists will be
maintained and places allocated, as they become available, in accordance with
each admission authority’s published admission arrangements. All offers will be
made to the applicant by the Home LA. Admissions authority schools must
not make direct offers to parents.
56. Parents will be advised that if they want to go on the waiting list for an out
borough school they should contact their Home LA.
57. Where a vacancy occurs and a place can be offered from the waiting list, this LA
will liaise with the admission authority for the school before advising the
parent/carer or Home LA of the offer.
58. For residents of this borough, this LA will check for alternative offers and, if the
child has a multiple offer, will give parents two weeks to decide which offer they
wish to accept. (For non-residents, this LA will advise the home LA of any
multiple offers). The outcome will be shared with each affected school and/or LA
as appropriate.
59. Applications received after 1 March 2019, will be added to community school
waiting lists or passed on to the relevant admissions authority as appropriate.
60. All further offers from the waiting list will be made by the Home LA after Kingston
School Admissions has communicated with the Kingston school to confirm the
next child on the waiting list to be offered a place.

17

I21

In Year Admissions
61. In-Year admissions i.e. the admission of children after the normal age of
admission to a school, will be administered in accordance with the agreed
In-Year Admissions scheme and the Pan London Protocols. For over-subscribed
year groups waiting lists will be maintained according to the published
admissions criteria for the academy/school.

18

I22

SCHEDULE 1
KINGSTON CO-ORDINATED SECONDARY ADMISSION ARRANGEMENTS FOR
2019/2020
Date
Action
2018
June

Publicity for Year 5 parents

June – 31 August
26 September

Exchange data on out-borough resident Year 5 pupils in LA
maintained schools
Start of Open Evenings for RBK secondary schools

31 October

Closing date for applications

12 November

Deadline for ADT files to PLR

15 – 19
November
22 November

LA to check ADT data before passing onto
academies/admission authority schools
Application data passed to academies/admission authority
schools
Admission authorities process applications against
admissions criteria for Community Schools
Final date for receipt of “on-time” applications

22 Nov 2018 –
9 Jan 2019
7 December
13 Dec 2018 – 2
January 2019
2019

Checking of applicant data

10 January

14 February

Ranked lists containing all applicants received by LA from
academies
Sending/receiving of potential offers via PLR to out of
borough LAs to identify single offer
Final ALT file to PLR

15 – 22 February

Checking of offer data

25 February

Deadline for online ALT file to portal

1 March

Send outcomes of applications to resident parents/guardians
and inform RBK schools of final offers
Return of reply slips

31 Jan – 14 Feb

15 March
22 March

Deadline of transfer of acceptances/declines to maintaining
LAs
19

I23

SCHEDULE 2
This LA’s Common Application Form will contain the following data fields as a minimum:
Child’s details:
Surname
First name
Middle name
Date of Birth
Gender
Home address
Name of current primary school
Address of primary school (if outside Home LA)
Parent/Carer details:
Title
Surname
First name/initials
Address (if different to child’s address)
Telephone Number (Home, Daytime, Mobile)
Email address
Relationship to child
Details of each school given as a preference (up to a maximum of six):
Name of secondary school
Address of secondary school
Preference ranking
Local Authority in which school is based
DE Number of secondary school
Additional information:
● Reasons for preferences (including any particular family, social or medical needs)
● Does the applicant have a Statement of Special Educational Needs?
● Is the applicant a child in public care?
If yes, name of local authority responsible for the child
● If the applicant has sibling(s), name of school sibling(s) attend
● Surname of Sibling
● Forename of Sibling
● DOB of Sibling
● Name of school sibling attends
Other
● Signature of parent or guardian
● Date of signature
● Where a school for which the applicant has applied requires further information to apply its
admission criteria, parents are advised to complete such supplementary information forms.

20

I24

PAN-LONDON CO-ORDINATED ADMISSIONS SCHEME
SCHEDULE 2
Template Outcome Letter for Admissions to Year 7 and Reception in 2019/2020

From: Home LA
Date: 1 March 2019 (sec)
16 April 2019 (prim)
Dear Parent
Application for a Secondary / Primary School
I am writing to let you know the outcome of your application for a secondary/primary
school. Your child has been offered a place at X School. The school will write to you with
further details.
I am sorry that it was not possible for your child to be offered a place at any of the schools
which you listed as a higher preference on your application form. For each of these
schools there were more applications than places, and other applicants has a higher
priority than your child under the school’s published admission criteria.
Offers which could have been made for any schools which you placed lower in your
preference list, were automatically withdrawn under the co-ordinated admission
arrangements, as a higher preference has been offered.
If you would like more information about the reason that your child was not offered a place
at any higher preference school, you should contact the admission authority that is
responsible for admissions to the school within the next few days. Details of the different
admission authorities for schools in the borough of X are attached to this letter. If the
school is outside the borough of X, the admission authority will either be the borough in
which the school is situated, or the school itself.
You have the right of appeal under the School Standards & Framework Act 1998 against
the refusal of a place at any of the schools for which you have applied. If you wish to
appeal, you must contact the admission authority for the school within the next few days to
obtain the procedure and the date by which an appeal must be received by them.
Please would you confirm that you wish to accept the place at X School by completing the
reply slip below. If you do not wish to accept the place, you will need to let me know what
alternative arrangements you are making for your child’s education.
You must contact this office if you wish to apply for any other school, either in this borough
or elsewhere.
[You can also request that your child’s name is placed on the waiting list for a school which
was a higher preference on your application form than the school you have been offered. If
21

I25

the school is in this borough, you can use the enclosed reply slip and return it to this office.
If the school is in another borough, you will need to contact the school or the borough
concerned.]
(The above paragraph can be omitted if the LA automatically places children on a waiting
list for higher preference schools, but the letter should confirm that this has been done.)
Please return the reply slip to me by 15 March 2019 (sec)/30 April 2019 (prim). If you
have any questions about this letter, please contact me on __________________.
Yours sincerely
(First preference offer letters should include the paragraphs in italics only)

22

I26

Annex 3
THE ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES
SCHEME FOR CO-ORDINATED PRIMARY SCHOOL ADMISSIONS
IN SEPTEMBER 2019
The Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames Local Authority (LA) will be administering
admissions to primary schools in accordance with the Pan London Co-ordinated
Admissions scheme. This scheme has been adopted by all participating London boroughs
that have agreed to use a common scheme that incorporates a common timetable and
application forms which have common elements. Parents will be allowed to nominate up to
six schools in preference order. It is hoped that the commonality of the schemes adopted
by all participating authorities will help simplify the application procedure and processing,
and help to achieve some equity of treatment for applicants to primary/academies across
the London Region.
Glossary of terms in the scheme
“the Application Year”

the academic year in which the parent makes an
application i.e. in relation to the academic year of entry, the
year preceding it
“the Board”
the Pan London Admissions Executive Board, which is
responsible for the Scheme
“the BUG – Business
the document issued to participating LAs setting out the
User Guide”
operational procedures of the Scheme
“the Common Application this is the form that each LA must have under the
Form”
Regulations for parents to use to make their applications,
set out in rank order
“the London E-Admissions the common online application system used by the 33
Portal”
London LAs and Surrey County Council
“the Equal Preference
the model whereby all preferences listed by parents on the
System”
Common Application Form are considered under the
over-subscription criteria for each school without reference
to parental rankings. Where a pupil is offered a place at
more than one school within an LA, the rankings are used
to determine the single offer by selecting the one ranked
highest of those which can offer a place
“the Home LA”
the LA in which the applicant/parent/carer is resident
“the LIAAG Address
the document containing the address verification policy of
Verification Register”
each participating LA
“the Local Admission
the IT module for administering admissions in each LA and
System (LAS)”
for determining the highest offer both within and between
participating LAs
“the London
the common online application system used by the 33
E-Admissions Portal”
London LAs and Surrey County Council
“the Maintaining LA”
the LA which maintains a school to which an
applicant/parent/carer has applied
“the Notification Letter”
the agreed form of letter sent to applicants which
communicates decisions granting or refusing admission to
a primary school, which is attached as Schedule 2
“the Prescribed Day”
16 April in the year following the relevant determination
year except that, in any year in which that day is not a

I27

the day on which
outcome letters are
posted to parents/carers.
“the Pan-London Register
(PLR)”
“the Pan-London
Timetable”
“the Qualifying Scheme”

working day, the prescribed day shall be the next working
day
the database which will transmit application and offer data
between each LA’s local admission system
the framework for processing of application data
the scheme which each LA is required to formulate in
accordance with the School Admissions (Coordination of
Admission Arrangements) Regulations 2008 for
co-ordinating arrangements for the admission of pupils to
maintained primary schools and academies

Applications
1. Applications from Kingston’s residents will be made on Kingston’s Common
Application Form, which will be available online and in paper form. This will
include all the fields and information specified in Schedule 2 (attached) to this LA
Scheme. These will be supplemented by any additional fields and information
deemed necessary by this LA.
2. This LA will take reasonable steps to ensure that information about applying for a
primary school and the primary admissions brochure will be available through
primary schools, libraries, pre-school groups; and will include information on how
parents/carers can access their home LA’s Common Application Form.
3. The admission authorities within this LA will not use supplementary information
forms except where the information is required to apply the published
over-subscription criteria and the information available through the Common
Application Form is not sufficient for consideration of the application against a
school’s published admissions criteria. The LA will seek to ensure admission
authorities within its area only collect information that is required by the published
over-subscription criteria, in accordance with paragraph 2.4 of the School
Admissions Code 2014.
4. Where supplementary information forms are used, these will be made available
from the relevant primary school. Parents will be advised in the brochure which
schools/academies require these forms to be completed, where to obtain the
forms and to return the supplementary information forms direct to the school by
the closing date. The supplementary information forms must also advise parents
that they must also complete their home LA’s Common Application Form, in
accordance with the School Admissions Code.
5. Where a school receives a supplementary information form it will not be regarded
as a valid application unless the parent has completed their home LA’s Common
Application Form and the school is nominated on it. This is in accordance with
the School Admissions Code.
24

I28

6. Schools which receive Common Application Forms in error must inform the LA
and send the forms to the LA as soon as possible. If the LA receives
supplementary information forms in error, it must send them to the schools as
soon as possible.
7. Applicants will be able to express a preference for up to six maintained primary
schools or academies within and/or outside the home LA. Applicants will be
advised that they will receive no more than one offer of a school place on 16
April 2019.
8. The order of preference given on the Common Application Form will not be
revealed except where a parent resident in this LA expresses a preference for
schools in the area of another LA, the order of preference for that LA’s
schools/academies will be given to that LA so that it can determine the highest
ranked preference in cases where a child is eligible for a place at more than one
school in that LA’s area.
9. Where a Common Application Form has been completed, but not a
supplementary information form, the preference is still valid and will be
considered. However, parents will be advised in the Primary Admissions
brochure that not submitting a completed supplementary information form to
schools/academies which require supplementary information to apply their
admissions criteria, may reduce their child’s chance of being offered a place
because the school’s criteria cannot be fully applied.
10. Kingston LA undertakes to carry out the address verification process set out in its
primary school admissions brochure and its entry in the Pan London and LIAAG
Business User Guide. This will, in all cases, include validation of addresses in
accordance with described processes and investigation of any discrepancy.
Where this LA is not satisfied with the validity of an applicant whose preference
has been sent to a maintaining LA, it will advise the maintaining LA no later than
5 February 2019.
11. Kingston LA will confirm the status of any resident child for whom it receives a
Common Application Form stating that he/she is a “Looked After Child” and will
provide evidence to the maintaining LA in respect of a preference for a school in
its area by 5 February 2019.
12. Kingston LA will advise a maintaining LA of the reason for any preference for a
school in its area, in respect of a resident child born outside of the correct age
range for the cohort, and forward any supporting documentation to the
maintaining LA by 5 February 2019.
13. This LA will share the details of each application with own admission authority
schools within RBK to enable schools to apply their admissions criteria.

25

I29

Processing (including Late Applications)
14. Applicants resident within Kingston LA must return the Common Application
Form, which will be available and able to be submitted online, to this LA by the
closing date of 15 January 2019. Supplementary information forms, where they
apply, must be returned to the school by the closing date of 15 January 2019,
which must be specified on the supplementary information form.
15. Application data relating to preferences for schools/academies in other
participating LAs, which have been expressed within the terms of this LA’s
scheme, will be up-loaded to the PLR by 5 February 2019. Supplementary
information forms provided with the Common Application Form will be sent to the
maintaining LA by the same date.
16. This LA will participate in the checking of applicant data between 12 February
and 26 February 2019 in the Pan London timetable.
17. This LA will only accept late applications and treat them as equivalent to
applications received by the closing date if the parent(s) move into The Royal
Borough of Kingston upon Thames after the closing date and can provide
documentary evidence confirming this or if there are exceptional reasons why the
application is late. Each late application will be considered separately and on its
own merits. Any such applications will need to be received by 8 February 2019,
to enable them to be considered alongside applications received earlier.
18. Where such applications contain preferences for schools/academies in other
LAs, this LA will forward the details to maintaining LAs via the PLR as they are
received. This LA will accept late applications which are considered to be on time
within the terms of the home LA’s scheme and pass them on to RBK
schools/academies for ranking as on time applications.
19. The latest date for the upload to the PLR of late applications which are
considered to be on-time within the terms of the home LA’s scheme is 11
February 2019.
20. Where a parent moves from one participating home LA to another after
submitting an on-time application under the terms of the former home LA’s
scheme, the new home LA will accept the applications as on time up to 8
February 2019, on the basis that an on-time application already exists within the
Pan London System.
21. Where a parent moves within the borough and wishes to change their
preferences to include schools/academies closer to their new home address, any
such applications will need to be received by 8 February 2019, to enable them to
be considered alongside applications received earlier.
22. The latest date for the upload to the PLR of late applications which are
considered to be on-time within the terms of the home LA’s scheme, is 11
February 2019.
26

I30

23. Any late applications received after 8 February 2019 but before 16 April 2019
will not be considered in the initial allocation round and will be considered after all
the on-time applications are processed.
24. In consultation with the school admission authorities within Kingston LA’s area
and within the framework of the Pan-London timetable, the draft timetable
attached has been drawn up for the processing of application data and the
application of admissions criteria. This may be subject to alteration prior to the
implementation of this scheme to reflect any required change under Pan London
arrangements.
25. Between 12 and 26 February 2019, this LA will check applicant data received
via the PLR and prepare details of applicants to be sent to own admission
authority schools/academies by 27 February 2019.
26. All preferences for schools/academies within this LA will be considered by the
relevant admission authorities between 27 February and 7 March 2019 for entry
in September 2019.
27. By 78 March 2019, all admission authorities within the Royal Borough of
Kingston upon Thames will have provided a list of applicants in criteria order to
this LA and this LA shall, for each applicant who has qualified for more than one
potential offer, use the highest ranked preference to decide which single potential
offer to make (this is the “Equal Preference System”).
28. Between 11 March 2019 and 15 March 2019, this LA will carry out all
reasonable checks to ensure that pupil rankings are correctly held in its LAS
(local admissions system) before uploading data to the PLR.
29. This LA will upload the highest potential offer (ALT File) available to an applicant
for a maintained school in this LA to the PLR by 28 March 2019. The PLR will
transmit the highest potential offer made by the maintaining LA to the Home LA.
30. The local admissions system (LAS) of this LA, as the home LA for Kingston
parents, will eliminate all but the highest ranked offer where an applicant has
more than one potential offer across the maintaining LAs for whose school(s)
he/she has applied (provided that those LAs each submit this information within
the deadline to the PLR). This will involve exchanges of preference outcomes
between the LAS and the PLR (in accordance with the iterative timetable
published in the BUG) which will continue until a steady state is achieved (which
the PLR will indicate), or until 28 March 2019 if this is sooner.
31. Kingston LA will not make an additional offer between the end of the iterative
process and 16 April 2019, which may impact on an offer being made by another
participating LA.
32. Notwithstanding paragraph 31, if an error is identified within the allocation of
places at one of this LA’s schools/academies, this LA will attempt to manually
resolve the allocation to correct the error. Where this impacts on another LA
(either as a home or maintaining LA), this LA will liaise with that LA to attempt to
27

I31

resolve the correct offer and any multiple offers which might occur. However, if
another LA is unable to resolve a multiple offer, or if the impact is too far
reaching, this LA will accept that the applicant(s) affected might receive a multiple
offer.
33. This LA will participate in the offer data checking exercise scheduled between 29
March 2019 and 10 April 2019 in the Pan London timetable.
34. This LA will send a file to the E-Admissions portal with outcomes for all residents
who have applied online no later than 11 April 2019.
Offers
35. On 16 April 2019, this LA will send out by first class post notification of the
outcome to resident applicants. This LA will inform all resident applicants of their
highest offer of a school place and where relevant, the reasons why higher
preferences were not offered, whether these were for schools/academies in the
home LA or in other participating LAs.
36. Kingston LA’s outcome letter will include the information set out in Schedule 2
37. Kingston parents whose children do not qualify for a place at any of the
schools/academies they apply for (in any LA) will be offered an alternative school
on 16 April 2019, if at all possible. This school will be the nearest school to the
home address with places remaining. Allocation will be made in accordance with
the school’s admission criteria or based on home to school distance. These
parents will also be offered the opportunity to make late applications to
schools/academies to which they did not originally apply.
38. Details of the pupils to be offered will be made available to each Kingston primary
school by 16 April 2019. All initial and subsequent offers will be made by the
Home LA throughout the co-ordinated admissions process and not by
schools.
Post-offer Arrangements
39. Parents must accept or decline the offer of a place by 30 April 2019, or within
two weeks of any subsequent offer. If they do not respond by this date, the LA
will make every reasonable effort to contact the parent to find out whether or not
they wish to accept or decline the place. Only where the parent fails to respond
and the LA can demonstrate that every reasonable effort has been made to
contact the parent, will the place be withdrawn.
40. Where an applicant resident accepts or declines a place in a school maintained
by another LA by 30 April 2019, this LA will forward the information to the
maintaining LA by 7 May 2019. Where such information is received after 30
April 2019, this LA will pass it to the maintaining LA as and when it is received.
28

I32

41. Where a place becomes available in an oversubscribed maintained school or
academy in this LA’s area, it will be offered from a waiting list ordered in
accordance with paragraph 2.14 of the School Admissions Code 2014.
42. When acting as a maintaining LA, this LA will inform the home LA, where
different, of an offer for a maintained school or Academy in this LA’s area which
can be made to an applicant resident in the home LA’s area, in order that the
home LA can offer the place.
43. Where a waiting list is maintained by an admission authority of a maintained
school or academy in this LA’s area, the admission authority will inform this LA of
a potential offer, in order that the offer may be made by the applicant’s home LA.
44. When acting as a maintaining LA, this LA and the admission authorities within it
will not inform an applicant resident in another LA that a place can be offered.
45. When acting as a home LA, this LA will offer a place at a maintained school or an
academy in the area of another LA to an applicant resident in its area, provided
that the school is ranked higher on the Common Application Form than any
school already offered.
46. When acting as a home LA, when this LA is informed by a maintaining LA of an
offer which can be made to an applicant resident in this LA’s area which is
ranked lower on the Common Application Form than any school already offered,
it will inform the maintaining LA that the offer will not be made.
47. When acting as a home LA, when this LA has agreed to a change of preference
order for good reason, it will inform any maintaining LA affected by the change. In
such cases, paragraphs 44 and 45 shall apply to the revised order of
preferences.
48. When acting as a maintaining LA, this LA will inform the home LA, where
different, of any change to an applicant's offer status as soon as it occurs.
49. When acting as a maintaining LA, this LA will accept new applications (including
additional preferences) from home LAs for maintained schools/academies in its
area.
Waiting List Arrangements
50. The letter, notifying parents of the outcome of their application, will also inform
them that their child’s name will be automatically placed on the waiting list for
higher preference schools/academies in Kingston than the one offered.
51. Parents with a higher preference offer can request that their child’s name is
added to waiting lists for lower preference schools/academies and his/her name
will be added in criteria order.
52. Waiting lists for community schools will be held in criteria order (regardless of
when an application is received) until the end of the academic year in July 2020.
29

I33

After this date, all waiting lists will be disbanded and parents will have to request
in writing to have their child’s name added to a waiting list for any community
school.
53. For own admission authority schools and academies, waiting lists will be
maintained and places allocated, as they become available, in accordance with
each admission authority’s published admission arrangements. All offers will be
made to the applicant by the Home LA. Admissions authority schools must
not make direct offers to parents.
54. Parents will be advised that if they want to go on the waiting list for an
out-borough school they should contact their Home LA.
55. Where a vacancy occurs and a place can be offered from the waiting list, this LA
will liaise with the admission authority for the offering school before advising the
parent/carer or Home LA of the offer.
56. For residents of this borough, this LA will check for alternative offers and, if the
child has a multiple offer, will give parents two weeks to decide which offer they
wish to accept. (For non-residents, this LA will advise the home LA of any
multiple offers). The outcome will be shared with each affected school and/or LA
as appropriate.
57. Applications received after 16 April 2019, will be added to community school
waiting lists or passed on to the relevant admissions authority as appropriate.
58. All further offers from the waiting list will be made by the Home LA after Kingston
School Admissions has communicated with the Kingston school to confirm the
next child on the waiting list to be offered a place.
In-Year Admissions
59. In-Year admissions (overage admissions), i.e. the admission of children after the
normal age of admission to a school, will be administered in accordance with the
agreed In Year Scheme and the Pan London Protocols. For over-subscribed year
groups waiting lists will be maintained according to the published admissions
criteria for the school.

30

I34

SCHEDULE 1
KINGSTON CO-ORDINATED PRIMARY ADMISSIONS 2019 TIMETABLE
DATE

ACTION

2019
15 January

Statutory deadline for receipt of applications

5 February

Deadline for transfer of application data by Home LA to
PLR
Final date for receipt of “on-time” applications and deadline
for upload of files to PLR
Check final on time data

11 February
12 – 26 February

11 - 15 March

Pass application data to VA/Foundation schools/academies
for ranking
VA/Foundation schools/academies process applications
against admissions criteria
Ranked lists containing all applicants received by LA from
VA/Foundation schools/academies
LA – input and check ranked lists into admission system

21 March

Deadline for the transfer of the ALT file to PLR

21 – 28 March
28 March

Sending/receiving of potential offers and declines via PLR
to out of borough LAs to identify single offer
Final ALT file to PLR

29 March - 10 April

LA checking of offers and declines data

11 April

Deadline for the transfer of outcomes of online applications
to the E-Admissions portal (ALT file)
Send outcomes of applications to resident
parents/guardians and inform RBK schools/academies of
final offers
Deadline for receipt of acceptances and refusals

27 February
27 Feb – 7 March
8 March

16 April

30 April
7 May

Deadline for transfer of acceptances/declines to RBK
schools/academies and maintaining LAs

31

I35

SCHEDULE 2
PAN-LONDON CO-ORDINATED ADMISSIONS SCHEME
This LA’s Common Application Form will contain the following data fields as a minimum:
Child’s details:
Surname
First name
Middle name
Date of Birth
Gender
Home address
Name of current school
Address of current school
Parent/carer details:
Title
Surname
First name/initials
Address (if different to child’s address)
Telephone Number (Home, Daytime, Mobile)
Email address
Relationship to child
Preference details (x 6):
Name of school
Address of school
Preference ranking
Local authority in which the school is based
Additional information:
Reasons for Preferences (including any medical or social reasons)
Does the child have a statement of SEN? Y/N*
Is the child a ‘Child Looked After’? Y/N
If yes, name of responsible local authority
Surname of sibling
Forename of sibling
DOB of sibling
Name of school sibling attends
Other:
Signature of parent or guardian
Date of signature
Where a school for which the applicant has applied requires further information to apply its
admission criteria, parents are advised to complete such supplementary information forms.

32

I36

PAN-LONDON CO-ORDINATED ADMISSIONS SCHEME
SCHEDULE 2
Template Outcome Letter for Admissions to Year 7 and Reception in 2019/2020

From: Home LA
Date: 1 March 2019 (sec)
16 April 2019 (prim)
Dear Parent
Application for a Secondary / Primary School
I am writing to let you know the outcome of your application for a secondary/primary
school. Your child has been offered a place at X School. The school will write to you with
further details.
I am sorry that it was not possible for your child to be offered a place at any of the schools
which you listed as a higher preference on your application form. For each of these
schools there were more applications than places, and other applicants has a higher
priority than your child under the school’s published admission criteria.
Offers which could have been made for any schools which you placed lower in your
preference list, were automatically withdrawn under the co-ordinated admission
arrangements, as a higher preference has been offered.
If you would like more information about the reason that your child was not offered a place
at any higher preference school, you should contact the admission authority that is
responsible for admissions to the school within the next few days. Details of the different
admission authorities for schools in the borough of X are attached to this letter. If the
school is outside the borough of X, the admission authority will either be the borough in
which the school is situated, or the school itself.
You have the right of appeal under the School Standards & Framework Act 1998 against
the refusal of a place at any of the schools for which you have applied. If you wish to
appeal, you must contact the admission authority for the school within the next few days to
obtain the procedure and the date by which an appeal must be received by them.
Please would you confirm that you wish to accept the place at X School by completing the
reply slip below. If you do not wish to accept the place, you will need to let me know what
alternative arrangements you are making for your child’s education.
You must contact this office if you wish to apply for any other school, either in this borough
or elsewhere.
[You can also request that your child’s name is placed on the waiting list for a school which
was a higher preference on your application form than the school you have been offered. If
the school is in this borough, you can use the enclosed reply slip and return it to this office.
33

I37

If the school is in another borough, you will need to contact the school or the borough
concerned.]
(The above paragraph can be omitted if the LA automatically places children on a waiting
list for higher preference schools, but the letter should confirm that this has been done).
Please return the reply slip to me by 15 March 2019 (sec)/30 April 2019 (prim). If you
have any questions about this letter, please contact me on __________________.
Yours sincerely
(First preference offer letters should include the paragraphs in italics only)

34

I38

Annex 4
ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES
SCHEME FOR IN-YEAR ADMISSIONS
FOR SEPTEMBER 2019/2020
1.

All in-year applications for a maintained school or academy in Kingston must be
made to Kingston LA on the LA’s in-year application form on which applicants
can list up to four schools in order of preference. Any form received by a
maintained school or academy must be forwarded to the LA for processing.

2.

Following recording and verification, Kingston LA will immediately share the
application with the relevant admission authorities via SAM. This will include a
completed Pupil Information Form (PIF) where relevant.

3.

Applicants will be advised to complete a supplementary information form if
required, to enable an admission authority to apply its published oversubscription
criteria.

4.

If a Kingston school receives a supplementary information form, it will first
confirm with Kingston LA that the school has been named on a completed in-year
application form.

5.

Where parents/carers have provided reasons for a preference school, the
information will be forwarded to the admission authority, via SAM.

6.

Where parents/carers have provided additional documents in support of their
application i.e. exceptional reasons, this will be forwarded to the admission
authority via a secure document exchange.

7.

Each admission authority will consider and rank an application as necessary and
will inform Kingston LA of the outcome of the application, and the applicant of the
offer or refusal.

8.

Via SAM, each admission authority can view all the applications received for its
school, including discarded preferences where a higher preference offer has
been made at another school. This will keep each school informed of the total
number of applications it has received.

9.

Kingston LA will advise parents/carers that their child’s name will be placed on
the waiting list for higher preference Kingston schools than the one offered.

10.

If a place cannot be offered at a school, the admission authority must advise the
applicant of their right of appeal, how to obtain appeal documentation and waiting
list arrangements and testing arrangements at selective schools as appropriate.

11.

Schools must keep the LA advised of all application outcomes and vacancies as
they occur so that the LA is able to keep abreast of availability of places. This is
in accordance with paragraph 2.22 of the School Admissions Code.

12.

Where an applicant lives outside the borough, Kingston LA will advise the home
LA of the application and outcome only where the offer of a place is made and
accepted by the parent; a parent of a child not in education declines an offer of a
place; a parent of a child not in education is unsuccessful with their application.
This information exchange will enable local authorities and schools to work
together to safeguard children and identify children missing education (CME).

